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Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF TRN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements ofTRN Energy Private Limited ("the Company"), 
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the 
Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as "Ind AS financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and its losses (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows 
and the changes in e4uily for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Ind AS Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the lnd AS financial statements under the provision of the Act and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matters 

I. We draw attention to Note 38 of the Ind AS financial statements which states that the Company defaulted in 
repayment of the dues of term lenders in September 2019 and October 2019, which were paid in the month of 
January 2020 and February 2020 respectively. Further, the Company could not repay dues of term lenders from 
November 2019 and subsequent periods. Consequently, REC being the lead lender to the term loan facility 
declared loan account of the Company as Non-Performing Assets (NPA) in the month ofMarch'2020. Considering 
incipient stress in the Company, its term lenders have appointed Concurrent Auditors/ Agency of Special 
Monitoring (ASM) in November 2019 for cash flow monitoring. 

In the month of August 2020, the Company has cleared overdue till 29 February 2020 and has applied for 
moratorium from 0 I March 2020 in accordance with RBI guidelines which has been approved by the rupee term 
lenders . 

Further, the Company could not pay dues of working capital lenders for October 2019 and for subsequent periods 
till January 2020 which were paid in parts during the period from November 2019 to February 2020. Dues of 
certain working lenders were not paid for the month of February 2020. In the month of August 2020, the Company 
cleared overdues till 29 February 2020 and has applied for moratorium from 01 March 2020 in accordance with 
RBI guidelines which has been approved by the working capital lenders. 

Thi' Company has also approached its rupee term lenders for approval of flexible structuring scheme in accordance 
with RBI guidelines. The flexible structuring is proposed to be implemented with cut-off date as 01 December 
2020. This implies that TRNEPL is required to clear all its overdues from 01 September 2020 to 30 November 
2020. The Company has cleared dues of all lenders till 30 September 2020. However, working capital account 
with Axis Bank has slipped to Sub-standard Category on 1 December 2020 due to "Out of Order" status in 
accordance with RBI guidelines. The Company is required to clear entire dues of Axis Bank to upgrade the 
account. The final outcome of this matter will be known only after approval of restructuring. Our report is not 
modified in respect of this matter. 
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2. We <lrciw allention to Note 30 of the Ind AS financial statements In terms of which It has been reported that 
there is net credit balance of Rs. 20,269. 72 lakhs of BGR Energy Systems Limited (BGR), the EPC Contrac:tor 
for the 2x300 MW TPP of the Company, and China Western Power Corporation (CWPC). 

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company had invoked & en cashed the Performance Bank Guarantees 
of Rs. 8,698.37 lakhs. Subsequent to above stated encashment ofPBG, BGR has filed a petition before Delhi High 
Court inter alia praying for restraining the Company from encashing the other bank guarantees . The Delhi High 
Court vide its order dated 2 July 2018 stated that the Company is restrained from receiving any further amounts 
pursuant to the invocation of bank guarantees till the next date of hearing, subject to the condition that BGR shall 
keep the un·encashed Bank Guarantees alive. 

During the current year, the Company has also invoked Performance Bank Guarantees (PBGs) ofCWPC ofUSD 
18 .61 Million through advising bank, i.e. Axis Bank, due to delays in the commissioning of the project. However, 
as informed by the advising bank, CWPC has taken injunction on the encashment of the said PBG in the Courts 
of China. The Company has not received any communication from the advising bank in this regard. 

Further, BGR has also invoked arbitration as per the terms of EPC Contract and as a result of this, the Company 
and BGR have constituted an Arbitral Tribunal and BGR has withdrawn the above stated Petition from Delhi High 
Court pertaining to BG encashment. The matter is now pending before the Arbitral Tribunal for the final settlement 
of the claims/ counter claims made by BGR and the Company. 

The Company will be able to evaluate all the above balances only when dispute between the parties is settled by 
the Arbitrator. Pending the final outcome of the arbitration proceedings, the Company has disclosed the aforesaid 
net amount of Rs. 20,269.72 lakhs and encashed amount of Rs. 8,698.37 lakhs under the head "Other non-current 
financial liabilities" in the financial statement. Our report is not modified in respect of this matter. 

3. We draw attention to Note 31 of the Ind AS financial statements in terms of which it has been reported that the 
Company has entered into a Power Purchase Agreement dated 25 July 2013 (PTC-PPA) with PTC India Limited. 
The Company had considered tariff applicable for first year for the supply of power to Uttar Pradesh Discoms for 
the period 17 May 2017 to 31 March 2018 and accordingly the tariff applicable for the second year was considered 
for the year 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019. However, PTC and Uttar Pradesh Discoms have disputed the 
Scheduled Delivery Date and have treated the Scheduled Delivery Date as 02 December 2016. Total revenue 
recorded over the period till 31 March 2020 w.r.t. above said matter is Rs. 3,713.58 lakhs. 

The Company being aggrieved by the stand taken by PTC and Uttar Pradesh Disco ms, filed petition before Hon 'hie 
Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) seeking 17 May 2017 as the Scheduled Delivery Date. In this 
Petition, the Company has also challenged other matters such as delay in payments of Monthly/Supplementary 
Bilis and failure to establish Payment Security Mechanism, wrong deduction of rebate on monthly energy bills, 
non- reimbursement of transmission charges, excess charge of trading margin, etc. and has claimed Late Payment 
Surcharge (LPS) 

PTC has also deducted the Rebate of Rs. 2, 779 .21 lakhs upto 31 March 2020 on the payments made by it to the 
Company. According to the management, the Rebate deducted by PTC is not as per the provisions of the PTC 
PPA, the Company has contested the same in the above mentioned Petition and has not accounted for the same. 
The Petition is currently pending before Hon 'hie CERC. Our report is not modified in respect of this matter. 

4. We draw attention to Note 32 of the Ind AS financial statements in terms of which it has been reported that the 
Company has claimed the Capacity Charges for the period January 2019 to March 2019 based on the Declared 
Capacity informed by it to UP Discoms considering the fact that the plant of the Company was available during 
the relevant period for the supply of power to UP Discoms though the supplies were curtailed owing to regulation 
invoked by PGCIL. However, PTC India Limited/ UP Discoms have not accepted the said Declared Capacity and 
have accepted the reduced capacity due to technical issues/ Regulation (restrictions on transmission of power) 
imposed by PGCIL. The Company has filed Petition with CERC w.r.t the claim on account of Capacity Charges 
due to the above mentioned difference in Declared Capacity. In the financial year 2018-19, the Company had 
recognised the revenue of Rs . 4,347.13 lakhs on account of above mentioned difference in Declared Capacity and 
accordingly the Company had not considered the penalty of Rs. 839.03 lakhs imposed by PTC/Uttar Pradesh 
Discoms. 



The Petition is currently pending before Hon 'ble CERC. During the current year also, the Company has recognised 
revenue based on the Declared Capacity informed by it to UP Discoms as the supplies of the Company were 
curtailed owing to regulation invoked by PGCIL. As a result of this, the Company has recognised revenue of Rs. 
7,285.39 lakhs for the current year which has not been accepted by PTC/ UP Discoms. 
Further, the company has not recognised penalty of Rs. 1,396.05 lakhs on account of this short supply of power. 
The Company will file Interlocutory Application (IA) in the petition mentioned above incorporating the updated 
amount. Our report is not modified in respect of this matter. 

5. We draw attention to Note 29 (d) & 35 of the Ind AS financial statements in terms of which it has been reported 
that the Company has entered into a PPA dated 26 May 2015 with Chhattisgarh State Power Trading Company 
Limited (CSPTrdCo.) for supply of 5% of net injection to CSPTrdCo w.e.f. 1 January 2016 i.e planned COD of 
pt Unit. However, commissioning of the pt Unit of the plant was delayed which was beyond the control of the 
Company. The Company as per the provisions of the said PP A had offered to supply the power from alternate 
source but the CSPTrsdCo. did not take the power as offered by the Company. CSPTrdCo has demanded 
Liquidated Damages of Rs. 475 lakhs. The Company is contesting this demand based on the facts and relevant 
provisions of the PPA and has accordingly not made any provisions towards this amount. 

Further, CSPTrdCo. levied the penalties of Rs. 1,550.02 lakhs, Rs. 267.62 lakhs & Rs. 1,296.68 lakhs for the year 
2017-18, 2018-19 & 2019-20 respectively on account of short supply of power. Considering the demand for 
penalty towards short supply of power raised by CSPTrdCo, the Company has made a provision of Rs. 1,369.00 
lakhs in the current year for the period up to March 2020. The final outcome of this liability will be known only 
upon the settlement of the same with CSPTrdCo. Our report is not modified in respect of this matter. 

6. We draw attention to Note 36 of the Ind AS financial statements in terms of which it has been reported that Water 
Resource Department, Chhattisgarh (WRD) had allocated 19.00 MCM (Million Cu.M) p.a. water to the Company 
from Kurket River. The Company had deposited an amount of Rs. 3,463.35 lakhs as an advance towards 
construction of anicuts and had also deposited security deposit of Rs. 166.72 lakhs. The Company has received 
the bills of water charges on the basis of90% of the 19.00 MCM p.a till 30 September 2019 and recorded the same 
accordingly. Thereafter, WRD has stopped the billing of water charges. The Company has made the provision 
towards water charge for the period October 2019 to March 2020 on the same principles, i.e. on 90% of the 19.00 
MCM p.a at the applicable rates. 

The Company has not made payments towards water charges bills and has not accounted for the interest liability 
due to non-payments of the water charges. Accordingly, various demand letters have been received by company 
from WRD. Company is contesting the demands raised by WRD. In view of the above, the Company has shown 
amount outstanding of Rs. 1,975.05 lakhs towards the water charges payable under the head "Trade payables" and 
has separately shown the above mentioned advances deposited. Pending the settlement, the Company has not 
adjusted this advance with the liability. The final outcome of the liability will be known only upon the settlement 
of the same with WRD. Our report is not modified in respect of this matter. 

7. As mentioned in Note 42 of Ind AS financial statements that the company is facing financial stress and also 
both the units of Company's power plant have been operating at lower Plant Load Factor (PLF) resulting in 
overall PLF of 37% in current year due to non-availability of sufficient working capital and delay in receipt 
of proceeds against Change in law bills. 

As mentioned in Note 38 oflnd AS financial statements, the Company defaulted in repayment of the dues of 
ter!"!l lenders in September 2019 and October 2019, which were paid in the month of January 2020 and 
February 2020 respectively. Further, the Company could not repay dues of term lenders from November 
2019 and subsequent periods. Consequently, REC being the lead lender to the term loan facility declared 
loan account of the Company as Non-Performing Assets (NPA) in the month of March'2020. Considering 
incipient stress in the Company, its term lenders have appointed Concurrent Auditors/ Agency of Special 
Monitoring (ASM) in November 2019 for cash flow monitoring. Although in the month of August 2020, the 
Company has cleared overdue till 29 February 2020 and has applied for moratorium from 01 March 2020 
in accordance with RBI guidelines. The Company has also approached its rupee term lenders for approval 
of flexible structuring scheme in accordance with RBI guidelines. The flexible structuring is proposed to be 
implemented with cut-off date as 01 December 2020. This implies that company was required to clear all 
its overdues from 01September2020 to 30 November 2020. 
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The Company has cleared dues of all lenders till 30 September 2020. However, working capital account with 
Axis Bank has slipped to Sub-standard Category on 1 December 2020 due to "Out of Order" status as in 
accordance with RBI guidelines. The Company is required to clear entire dues of Axis Bank to upgrade the 
account. 

However, the Company is expecting payments towards its Change in law bills in the near future. The 

Company is also working actively to resolve/settle its disputes. Further, the Company is also in the process 

of finalizing the restructuring plan with its lenders. This will result in better financial position of the 

company and the Company will be able to generate sufficient working capital to run its power plant at 

optimum levels so as to meet its obligation to term lenders, working capital lenders, vendors and obligation 

towards statutory dues. 

Keeping in view the facts mentioned hereinabove, these financial statements are prepared on going concern 
assumption considering the Company's ability to recover its overdues and implementation of restructuring 
plan (under process of approval from lenders) in the near future. Our report is not modified in respect of this 
matter. 

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the Ind 
AS financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information, and accordingly, we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so , consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows 
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process. 



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of lhe Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Ifwe conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government in 
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books; 



( c) Tht: balanct: sht:t:l, lht: slalt:mt:nl of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of 
cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books 
of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 
as amended. 

( e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020 taken on record by 
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B"; 

(g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has not paid managerial remuneration during the year and thus the Company is not in breach of the limits 
prescribed in section 197 of the Act; and 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 on its financial 
position in its Ind AS financial statements (refer note 29 to 36 to the Ind AS financial statements); 

(ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses; 

(iii) The Company did not have any dues on account oflnvestor Education and Protection Fund. 

For Nagar Goel & Chawla 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 009933N 
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Deepak Nagar i·I ' · .. , r::- 1::i 
Partner 
Membership No.: 087456 
V'DIN : 2..\0&,45b (-\~~F\~C ~~~'\) 
Place: New Delhi 
Date :30 December 2020 



ANNEXURE A TU THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS 
FINAN CI A I, ST ATF.MRNTS OF TRN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of the Company on the Ind AS financial statements for the year 
ended 31 March 2020, we report that: 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets (property, plant and equipment). 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets (property, plant and 
equipment). According to that programme, the Company has physically verified certain assets during the 
year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed during physical verification 
of fixed assets (property, plant and equipment). 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis our examination of the records 
of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company. 

(ii) The inventories, except stock lying with third parties, have been physically verified by the management 
during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. As informed to us, the 
discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not material and 
have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts. 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability 
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013 ('the Act'). Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted 
any loans, investments or provided any guarantees or securities during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from 
the public. Accordingly, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank oflndia and the provisions of Sections 73 
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder, are not applicable. 

(vi) The Company is required to maintain the books of account pursuant to the rules prescribed by the Central 
Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act and we are of the opinion that 
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained . However, we have not 
made a detailed examination of the records with a view to ensure whether they are adequate or complete. 

(vii)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us the amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of 
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, 
have been deposited with substantial delays during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities, 
except for the following dues which are still payable: 

Particulars Amount (Rs. in lakhs) Period 
TDS Payable 579.76 Mar'20 
Electricity Duty Payable (excluding 3142.77 Feb'l8 to Mar'20 
interest) 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income tax, Goods and Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess 
and other material statutory dues, as applicable, were in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more 
than six months from the date they became payable except as mentioned below: 

S. No. Nature of dues Amount Period Payment Date 
(Rs. in lakhs) 

I Electricity Duty (excluding interest) 2,825.97 Feb'l8 to Sep'l9 Not yet deposited 
' 



(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Goods and 
Service Tax, Duty of Customs and Cess, as applicable, which have not been deposited with the appropriate 
authorities on account of any dispute except as mentioned below: 

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount Amount Period to Forum 
(Rs. in paid (Rs. which the where 
lakhs) in lakhs) amount dispute is 

relates pendin2 
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 431.84 - Assessment Delhi High 

Year 2012-13 Court 
Central Goods and Goods & 112.60 - 2015-16,2016- Directorate 
Services Tax Act, 2017 Service Tax 17 & 2017-18) general of 

GST 
Employees' State ES! 14,243.57 - 01 June 2016 Chhattisgarh 
Insurance Corporation to 31 March high court 

2017 

(viii) The Company has defaulted in payment of loans to banks during the year. The details of such defaults are as 
under: 

Name of the Lenders Nature Amount of default Period of default Remarks* 
of Dues as at 31 Mar 2020 

(Rs. in lakhs) 
Principal 3,938 .24 Oct 19 to Dec 19 (Due on Paid in Aug 2020 

31.12.19) 
Principal 2,441.71 Jan 20 to Mar 20 (Due on Company has 

Rural Electrification 31.3.2020) availed Covid'l9 
Corporation Limited Moratorium. 

Interest 5,730.83 01Nov19 to 29 Feb 20 Paid in Aug 2020 
Interest 1,622.82 01 Mar 20 to 31 Mar 20 Company has 

availed Covid'l9 
Moratorium. 

Principal 1,849.48 16 Oct 19 to 15 Jan 20 Paid in August 
(Due on 15 Jan '20) 2020 

Power Finance Interest 2,198 .03 16 Dec 19 & 15 Feb 20 Paid in August 
Corporation Limited 2020 

Interest 988.18 16 Feb 20 to 15 Mar 20 Company has 
availed Covid'19 
Moratorium. 

Principal 100.99 Oct 19 to Dec 19 (Due in Paid in August 
Dec 19) 2020 

Principal 100.99 Jan 20 to Mar 20 (Due in Company has 
India Infrastructure Mar 20) availed Covid'l9 
Finance Co Ltd, UK Moratorium . 

Interest 380.77 01Dec19 to 29 Feb 20 Paid in August 
2020 

Interest 117.92 01Mar20 to 31Mar20 Company has 
availed Covid'l9 
Moratorium. 

*Refer note no. 38, 39 & 40 to the Ind AS financial statement. 

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any money by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and the term loans taken by the 
Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised. 

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by 
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. · 1 

• , , , 



(xi) In our opm10n and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
paid/provided for managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(xii) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations givt:n Lu us, Lht: Company is not a nidhi 
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance 
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the 
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the 
applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully 
or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors 
or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered 
under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank oflndia Act 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

For Na gar Goel & Chawla 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 009933N 

~~0( '----
Deepak Nagar N ·1 D 
Partner 0. 
Membership No.: 087456 . , . , 

UO\N ~ )..\ 0 8"'\L-\5b A f\~"'f\c' ~q"i:o 
Place: New Delhi 
Date :30 December 2020 



ANNEXURE D TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS 
FiHA:i'iCIAL STATEMENTS OF TRN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting, issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants oflndia (the "Guidance Note"). 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financi"I controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit oflnternal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and prescribed under 
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained 
and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporti"Jg included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
contra! based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
cpinio:, on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Ind AS financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the Ind AS financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements. 



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Date :30 December 2020 



TRN Energy Private Limited 

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020 

(All tllttfJllnl\' ure in Rupee.\' luk/1.\·1 1111/e.\·.v flflte111 1i\'e ,i;futed) 

ASSETS 

(I) Non-current assets 

(a) Prope11y, plant and equipment (including RoU assets) 

(b) Capital work-in-progress 

(c) Financial assets 

(i) Loans 

(ii) Other financial assets 

(d) Non-current tax assets (net) 

(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 

(f) Other non-current assets 

Total non-current assets 

(2) Current assets 

(a) Inventories 

(b) Financial assets 

(i) Trade receivables 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 

(iii) Other bank balances 

(iv) Other financial assets 

(c) Other current assets 

Total current assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

(I) Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 

(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature 

(c) Other equity 

Total equity 

(2) Non-current liabilities 

(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Provisions 

Total non-current liabilities 

(3) Current liabilities 

(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Trade and other payable 

-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 

(c) Provisions 

Total current liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Nager Goel & Chawla 

Partner 

Membership No.: 087456 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 30 December 2020 

As at 
Note 

3 I March 2020 

3 

6 

9 

10 

10 

II 
12 

13 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

2 

318,512.69 

157.36 

31,63 

2,912 .68 

1,240.46 

36,569.89 

3,760 52 

363,185.23 

5,856.14 

50,517.06 

105 23 

855 68 

29,888,93 

5,279.04 

92,502.08 

455,687.31 

62,584.41 

11,982.40 

(56,297.36) 

18,269.45 

273,832.40 

28,968 09 

224,68 

303,025.17 

58,757 40 

35,284.07 

36,523.24 

3,816.23 

11 .75 

134,392.69 

455,687.31 

For and on behalfof the Board of Directors of 

TRN Energy Private Limited 

... }~ 
Managing Director 

DIN: 02972610 

Bindu Pareek 

Company Secretary 

ACS No.: 639./2 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: 30 December 2020 

As at 
31 March 2019 

'5;:.•1' 

338,033 64 

158.52 

34 58 

981 47 

729 90 

35,444.47 

3,965 97 

379,348.55 

7,759 47 

62,489.94 

188.13 

3,609.14 

14,804.94 

2,10596 

90,957.58 

470.306.13 

62,584.41 

11,982 40 

(25,534 .26) 

49,032.55 

280,813.66 

29,999 66 

197 73 

3ll,Oll.05 

53,832 56 

32,596.49 

20,807 61 

3,013.40 

12.47 

110,262.53 

470,306.13 

S:111jll)' Jain 
Director & CFO 

DIN: 00364854 



TRN Energy Private Limited 

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended JI March 2020 

(All amou11ts are in Rupees lak/1s, u11/ess otllerwise stated) 

Income: 

Revenue from operations 

II Other income 

III Total income (1+11) 

IV Expenses: 

Power, fuel and water charges 

Employee benefits expenses 

Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Other expenses 

Total expenses 

v Loss before tax (III-IV) 

VI Tax expense: 

Deferred tax credit 

VII Loss for the year (V-VI) 

VIII Other comprehensive income/(loss) 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 

- Net actuarial gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans 

Note 

23 

24 

25 

26 

3 
27 

6 

Income tax relating to above items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

IX Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (VIl+VllI) 

Earnings/(loss) per equity share (Rs.) 

- Basic 

-Diluted 

(Face value of Rs. 10 each) 

Significant accounting policies 

28 

2 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For the year ended 
31 March 2020 

76,604.38 

773.01 

77,377.39 

34,140.71 

1,520.78 

41,361.54 

19,558.00 

12,680.39 

109,261.42 

(Jl,884.0J) 

(1,123.85) 

(JO, 760.18) 

(4.49) 

(4.49) 

1.57 

(2.92) 

(30,76J.10) 

(4.92) 

(4.92) 

For the year ended 
31 March 2019 

121 ,876.80 

4,681.42 

126,558.22 

65,164.34 

1,334.29 

43,760.33 

19,512.03 

8,779.01 

138,550.00 

(11,991. 78) 

(3,920.76) 

(8,071.02) 

2.75 

2.75 

(0.95) 

1.80 

(8,069.22) 

(1.29) 

(1.29) 

For Nagar Goel & Chawla For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

TRN Energy Private Limited 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 30 December 2020 

Mmu1g111g Director 

DIN: 02972610 

~ 
llintlu Pareek 

Company Secretary 

ACS No.: 63942 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: 30 December 2020 

c:,.:..' 1 . ----Sanjay Jain 

Director & CFO 

DIN: 00364854 



TRN Energy Private Limited 
Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(All amounts are in Rupees foklts, unless otherwise stated) 

a. Equity share ca11i1!1I 
Balance as at I April 2018 

Changes during the year ended 31 March 2019 

Balance as at 31 March 2019 
Changes during the year ended 31 March 2020 

Balance as at 31 March 2020 

b. Instruments entirely cquily in nature 

Balance as at 1April2018 

Changes during the year ended 31 March 2019 

Balance as at 31 March 2019 

Changes during the year ended 31 March 2020 

Balance as at 31 March 2020 

c. 0 h t er c11111ty 

Equity 
component of 

Particulars compound 
financial 

instruments 

Balance as at I April 2018 1,633.27 

Loss for the year -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) -
Total comprehensive income/(Ioss) for the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 1,633.27 

Balance as at I April 2019 1,633.27 

Loss for the year -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tax) -
Total comprehensive income/(Ioss) for the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,633.27 

62,584.41 

-
62,584.41 

-
62,584.41 

11,982.40 

-
11,982.40 

-

11,982.40 

Other equity (refer note 14) 

Securities premium Retained earnings 
account 

32.34 (19,138.72) 

- (8,071.02) 

- -
- (8,071.02) 

32.34 (27,209.74) 

32.34 (27,209.74) 

- (30, 760.18) 

- -
- (30, 760.18) 

32.34 (57,969.92) 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Nagar Goel & Chawla 
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No : 009933N 

J>-e.arl~, 
Deepak Nagar 
Partner 

Membership No.: 087456 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 30 December 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

TRN Energy Private Limited 

Managing Director 

DIN: 02972610 

~ 
Company Secretary 

ACS No.: 63942 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: 30 December 2020 

Remeasurement 
of defined 

benefit 
obligations 

8.07 

-
1.80 

1.80 
9.87 

9.87 

-
(2.92) 

(2.92) 

6.95 

Sanjay Jain 

Director & CFO 

DIN: 00364854 

Total 

(17,465.04) 

(8,071.02) 

1.80 
(8,069.22) 

(25,534.26) 

(25,534.26) 

(30,760.18) 

(2.92) 

(30,763 .10) 
(56,297.36) 



TRN Energy Pri\'ate Limited 

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(All 11nw1111t.•· 11re i11 R11pee.•· f11klu", 1111/ess ot/1erwi.•·e .\'111/ed) 

A) Cash now from operating activities: 
Net loss before tax 
Adjustment for:-
- Depreciation 
- Exchange fluctuation 
- Interest income 
- Interest expense 

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 

Adjustments for: 

Increase in trade payables 

Increase in other current liabilities 

Increase in long term and short term provisions 

Decrease/(increase) in inventories 

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 

Decrease in long tenn and short tenn loans 

Increase in other current and non-current assets 

Cash flow from opera lions 

Taxes paid (net) 

Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 

B) Cash flow from investing activities: 

Purchase of property plant and equipment/ capital work in progress 

Movement of fixed deposits 

Interest income received 

Net cash flow from inv .. ting activities (B) 

C) Cash now from financing activiti .. : 

Proceeds from share application money 

Repayments of share application money 

Proceeds from secured loans 

Repayments of secured loans 

Proceeds from unsecured loans 

Repayments of unsecured loans 

Movement in cash credit and working capital demand loan 

Interest paid 

Net cash used in financing activities (C ) 

D) Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+c) 

E) Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 

F) Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 

Component of cash and cash equivalents 

Balance with banks: 

- Current accounts 

Cash on hand 

DDinhand 

Ch~nge in llahility 11rlsi11g from financing activities 

Particulars Balance as at 
01 April 2019 

Borrowings-Non current (refer note 15) 297,808.04 

Borrowings-Current (refer note 18) 53,832.56 

351,640.60 

Cash How 

(7.843.78) 

3,030.05 

(4,813.73) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

(31 ,884 03) (11,991 78) 

19,558 00 19,512 03 
2,483.81 777.73 
(742 19) (4,675 34) 

41,361.53 43,760.33 

30,777.12 47,382.97 

2,687.58 22,405 .15 

767 17 10,581.30 

21 75 63 .!8 

1,903 34 (3,189.33) 

11 ,972.88 (33,892 34) 

2.95 129 48 

(21,309.87) (9,251 23) 

26,822.92 34,229.18 

(510.56) (266 79) 

26,312.36 33,962.39 

(3,00) (543.01) 

1,750.56 (971 42) 

742 19 4,675.34 

2,489.75 3,160.91 

105.00 

(105 ,00) 

20,686 00 237,68 

(7,963.78) (5,190.22) 

4,377.95 14,724.00 

(22,235 00) (12,810.22) 

321.10 3,006.25 

(24,071.28) (37,099.40) 

(28,885.01) (37, 131.91) 

(82.90) (8.61) 

188_13 196.74 

105.23 188.13 

98.05 175.15 

6.96 12 .98 

0,22 

105.23 188.13 

Adjustments• Balance as at 
31 March 2020 

2,678.43 292,642.69 

1,894 79 58,757.40 

4,573.22 351,400.09 

• On account of foreign exchange adjustments, loan processing fees and unwindmg of c1p1ity component of compouud linnutinl in. tnuncnts. 

Note: 

The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with 'Indirect method' as set out in the Ind AS-7 on "Statements of Cash Flow ' as specified in 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014. 

As per our report of even date attached 

Deepak Nagar 

Partner 
Membership No.: 087456 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 30 December 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

TRN Energy Private Limited 

"'"'~' ~ 
Managing IJ~a~ Director & CFO 
DIN:02972610 DIN:00364854 

~-
Company Secretary 

ACS No.: 63942 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: 30 December 2020 



TRN Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
(All amount are in Rupees laklts, unless otherwise stated) 

1. Background 

TRN Energy Private Limited, ('the Company') was incorporated on 17 November 2006 (CIN 
U40!09DL2006PTCl55618). The Company is domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at 18, 
Vasant Enclave, Rao Tula Ram Marg, New Delhi-110057. With effect from 19 January 2012, the 
Company had changed its status from private limited company to public limited company and as a result 
changed its name from TRN Energy Private Limited to TRN Energy Limited. Further, with effect from 5 
September 2013, the Company has changed its status from public limited company to private limited 
company and as a result changed its name from TRN Energy Limited to TRN Energy Private Limited. 

The Company is engaged in the business of thermal power generation. The Company has achieved COD of 
first and second unit of its 2x300 MW Thermal Power Plant located at Nawapara, Raigarh, Chhattisgarh on 
19 August 2016 and 01 May 2017 respectively. A major part of the power generated is sold under the 
terms oflong term Power Purchase Agreements (PP As). 

2. Significant accounting policies 

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial 
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

a. Basis of preparation of financial statements 

i) Statement of compliance 

These Ind AS financial statements ("Financial Statements") have been prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended from time to time, notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the 
'Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act. In addition, the guidance notes I announcements issued 
by ICAI are also applied except where compliance with other statutory promulgation requires a 
different treatment. 

ii) Historical cost convention 

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis except 
for some assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value/amortised cost. 

iii) Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ("INR" or "Rs."), which is the Company's 
functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest lakhs 
(upto two decimals), except as stated otherwise. 

iv) Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current 
classification. 

Assets: 

An asset is treated as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
(I) It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal 

operating cycle; 
(2) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
(3) It is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
( 4) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 

for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current. 



TRN Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
(All amount are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Liabilities: 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
(1) It is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; 
(2) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
(3) It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
(4) The company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 

months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, 
result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively. 

Operating cycle 

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash 
or cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose 
of current-non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

b. Summary of significant accounting policies 

i. Property, plant and equipment 

(a) Initial recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to 
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management. 

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are recognized 
separately. 

Expenditure on major inspection and overhauls of generating unit is capitalized, when it meets the asset 
recognition criteria. 

Items of spare parts, stand-by equipment and serv1cmg equipment which meet the definition of 
property, plant and equipment are capitalized. Other spare parts are carried as inventory and recognized 
in the statement of profit and loss on consumption. 

Significant judgment is required to apply for the accounting of non-current assets held for sale under 
Ind AS 105 'Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations'. In assessing the 
applicability, management has exercised judgment to evaluate the availability of the asset for 
immediate sale, management's commitment for the sale and probability of sale within one year to 
conclude if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than 
through continuing use. 

(b) Subsequent costs 

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is 
probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying 
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow 
to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. 



TRN Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
(All amount are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

(c) Decommissioning costs 

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in 
the cost of the respective asset ifthe recognition criteria for a provision are met. 

( d) Derecognition 

Prope1iy, plant and equipment are derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from 
their use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and 
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of 
property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(e) Depreciation 

For assets used for power operations: 
Pursuant to Part 'B' of Schedule II to the Act, the useful life or residual value of any specific asset, as 
notified for accounting purposes by a regulatory authority constituted under an Act of Parliament or by 
the Central Government shall be applied in calculating the depreciation to be provided for such asset 
irrespective of the requirements of this Schedule. 

Ministry of Power, Government of India vide resolution dated 6th January 2006, has notified Tariff 
Policy in terms of Section 3 of the Electricity Act, 2003. The said tariff policy inter alia provides that 
rates of depreciation as notified by Central Electricity Regulatory Commission ('CERC') would be 
applicable for the purpose of tariffs as well as accounting. CERC has also notified the rates of 
depreciation as well as methodology for computing such depreciation and depreciation is to be 
provided up to 90% of the cost of asset, based on straight line method of calculating the depreciation. 

Common machinery spares: 
The items of spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment (Common machinery spares) 
when they meet the definition of Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over 2 to 15 years 
based on the technical evaluation ofuseful life. 

ii. Capital work in progress 

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials & direct labour, any other costs 
directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management and borrowing costs. 

Expenses directly attributable to construction of property, plant and equipment incurred till they are 
ready for their intended use are identified and allocated on a systematic basis on the cost of related 
assets. 

iii. Intangible assets 

(a) Initial recognition and measurement 

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are measured at cost 
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes any directly 
attributable incidental expenses necessary to make the assets ready for its intended use. 

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalizations under intangible assets are carried as 
intangible assets under development till they are ready for their intended use. 

(b) Derecognition 

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or 
upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of intangible assets are determined by 
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of intangible assets and are recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 



TRN Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
(All amount are in Rupees laklrs, unless otherwise stated) 

( c) Amortisation 

Cost of software recognized as intangible asset, is amortized on straight line method over a period of 
legal right to use or 6 years, whichever is less. Other intangible assets are amortized on straight line 
method over the period of legal right to use or life of the related asset, whichever is less. 

iv. Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

A. Financial assets 

a. Initial recognition and measurement 

On initial recognition, financial assets are recognised at fair value. In case of financial assets which are 
recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction costs are attributed to the acquisition value 
of the financial asset. 

b. Subsequent measurement 

Debt instruments at amortized cost 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: 
(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 

contractual cash flows, and 
(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
EIR method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in 
finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. 

Debt instrument at FVTOCI (Fair value through other comprehensive income) 

A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 
(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and 

selling the financial assets, and 
(b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each 
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the OCI. However, the Company 
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the 
profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is 
reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument 
is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 

Debt instrument at FVTPL (Fair value through profit or loss) 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the 
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 



TRN Energy Private Limited 
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In addition, the Company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized 
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or 
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). Debt 
instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in the profit and loss. 

c. Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when: 
);> The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
);> The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 
'pass-through' arrangement; and either 
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the 

asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

d. Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk 
exposure: 
(a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt 

securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance. 
(b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI. 
( c) Trade receivables under Ind AS 18. 
( d) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL. 
(e) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company 
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. 
If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. 
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, 
credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk 
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-
month ECL. 

B. Financial liabilities 

a. Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective 
hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company's financial 
liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings and derivative financial instruments. 

b. Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortization is included in finance costs in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade 
payables and other contractual liabilities. 
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial 
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the 
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company 
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. 
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as 
effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For 
liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are 
recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company 
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability 
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability 
as at fair value through profit and loss. 

Borrowings 

After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR 
method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well 
as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

c. Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. 

C. Derivative financial instruments 

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as cross currency swaps to hedge its foreign 
currency risks and interest rate risks of foreign currency loans. Such derivative financial instruments 
are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is 
positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from 
changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken to statement of profit and loss. 

v. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) 

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of 
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value 
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and 
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The basis for determination of cost of various categories 
of inventories is as follows: 

A. Fuel for thermal power plants: 

Value/cost of fuel for thermal power plants is computed on first in first out basis (FIFO). 
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B. Stores and spare parts: 

Value/cost of stores and spare parts is computed on moving weighted average method. 

vi. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and fixed deposits with banks with 
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

vii. Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised 
goods or services to the customers at an amount which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for promised goods or services excluding amount collected on behalf of third parties (for example some 
taxes). Discounts given to customers are deducted from the amount ofrevenue. 

The Company's revenue arises from the following: 

A. Power operations: 

Revenue from sale of thermal power is recognised based on tariffs as per the terms of the Power 
Purchase Agreements, petition filed with regulatory authorities for tariff and arrangements entered 
into by the Company with respective customers. 

B. Other income: 

Interest income is recognized, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability 
exists, on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable 
interest rate, using the effective interest rate method (EIR). For debt instruments measured either at 
amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the 
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a 
shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the 
amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the EIR, the Company estimates the 
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for 
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit 
losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. 

Revenue from rentals and operating leases is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the 
substance of the relevant agreement. 

Scrap is accounted for as and when sold. 

viii. Expenditure: 

Expenses are accounted on accrual basis. 

ix. Employee benefits 

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as 
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service. 

Defined contribution plans: 

A defined contribution plan i.e. provident fund is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity 
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal and constructive obligation to pay 
further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an 
employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when they are due. Prepaid contributions 
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. 
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Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of the 
period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their present value. 

Defined benefit plans: 

A defined benefit plan i.e. gratuity, is a post-employment benefit plan. 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of 
plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit 
credit method. 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in rupees. is determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The 
benefits which are denominated in currency other than rupees, the cash flows are discounted using 
market yields determined by reference to high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the 
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to the terms of the 
related obligation. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. 
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or 
curtailments are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost. 

Compensated absences: 

Benefits under the Company's compensated absences scheme constitute other long-term employee 
benefits. The liability in respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial 
valuation done by an independent actuary at the year end. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized 
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

x. Convertible preference shares 

Ind AS 32 'Financial Instruments' defines an equity instrument as 'any contract that evidences a 
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities'. The accounting definition 
of 'Equity' is principle based as compared to the legal definition of"Equity" or "shares", such that any 
contract that evidences residual interest in an entity's net asset is termed as 'Equity' irrespective of 
whether it is legally recognized as a "Share" or not. Accordingly, all instruments (including convertible 
preference shares and convertible debentures) that meet the definition of 'Equity' as per Ind AS 32 and 
when they do not have any component of liability, are considered as having the nature of 'Equity' for 
the purpose of Ind AS Schedule III. Such instruments are termed as "Instruments entirely equity in 
nature' . 

xi. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or development of 
qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of such asset until such time the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which take a substantial period of time to get 
ready for their intended use or sale. 

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the 
borrowing costs incurred are capitalized. When the Company borrows funds generally and uses them 
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalization of the borrowing costs is computed 
based on the weighted average cost of general borrowing that are outstanding during the period and 
used for the acquisition, construction/exploration or erection of the qualifying asset. 
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Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the 
qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other 
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Income earned on temporary 
investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the qualifying assets is deducted from the 
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from 
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. 

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred. 

xii. Foreign currency translation 

Transactions and Balances 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of 
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 
functional currency closing rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on 
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the 
extent of exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign 
currency borrowings that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets 
which are capitalized as cost of assets. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded 
using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a 
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured. 
The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line 
with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item i.e., translation 
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or 
Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or Statement of 
Profit and Loss, respectively. 

xiii. Leases 

As lessee 

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases effective 1 April 2019, using the modified retrospective 
method. The Company has applied the standard to its leases with the cumulative impact recognised 
with no impact on retained earnings on the date of initial application (I April 2019). Accordingly, 
previous period information has not been restated. 

As a lessee, the Company previously classified leases as operating or finance lease based on its 
assessment of whether the lease transferred significantly all of the risk and rewards incidental to the 
ownership of the underlying asset of the Company. 

The Company evaluates each contract or arrangement, whether it qualifies as lease as defined under Ind 
AS 116. The Company as a lessee assesses, the contract is, or contains, a lease ifthe contract involves: 

a) the use of an identified asset, 
b) the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and 
c) the right to direct the use of the identified asset. 

Right of use assets ("ROU") 

At the date of commencement of lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases 
with a term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and leases of low value assets. For these 
short term and leases of low value assets, the Company recognises the lease payments as an 
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 
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The right-of-use assets (it includes prepayment for all the future rentals) are initially recognised at 
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease 
incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line 
basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment in accordance with Ind AS 36 "Impairment 
of assets". 

xiv. Income Taxes 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in 
OCI. 

• Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of 
current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or 
received after considering uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously. 

• Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 
Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and that effects neither accounting nor taxable profit or 
loss at the time of the transaction; 

temporary differences related to freehold land and investments in subsidiaries, to the extent 
that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences 
and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and 

taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred tax assets (DTA) include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax 
laws in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off 
against future income tax liability. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which they can be used. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting 
date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which they can be used. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected 
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax 
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at 
the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously. 
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xv. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per equity share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to owners of the 
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, 
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares. 

Diluted earnings per equity share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per 
share to take into account: 

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential 
equity shares, and 

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding 
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

xvi. Provisions and contingent liabilities 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are 
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, 
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement 
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to a 
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only 
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the 
control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, 
or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless 
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the 
basis of judgment of the management/ independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet 
date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate. 

xvii. Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 
'Impairment of Assets'. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair 
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be 
tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows 
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets 
(the "cash-generating unit", or "CGU"). 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized 
in respect ofCGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU. 

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only 
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to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

xviii. Critical estimates and judgements 

The preparation of Financials Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that effect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical 
judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes: 

• Recognition and estimates of tax expense including deferred tax - Note 2(b)(xiv) & 6 
• Estimated impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets - Note 2(b )(iv) & (xvii) 
• Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset - Note 2(b)(i) & 

(iii) 
• Estimation of assets and obligations relating to employee benefits - Note 2(b)(ix) & 43 
• Valuation of inventories - Note 2(b)(v) 
• Recognition and measurement of contingency: Key assumption about likelihood and magnitude of 

an outflow ofresources - Note 2(b)(xvi) & 29 
• Lease classification - Note 2(b)(xiii) & 47 

xix. Measurement of fair values 

A number of accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial 
and non-financial assets and liabilities. 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques. 

The different levels of fair value have been defined below: 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes 
listed equity instruments and traded bonds that have quoted price. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined 
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as 
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are 
observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument 
is included in level 3. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities included in Level 3 is determined 
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using 
prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes of similar instruments. This level 
includes derivative MTM assets/liabilities. 

There have been no transfers in either direction for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019. 
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Valuation technique used to determine fair value 

Specific valuation technique used to value financial instruments includes: 

• the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments. 
• the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash 

flows based on observable yield curves. 
• the fair value of principal swaps is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet 

date. 
• the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow 

analysis. 
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Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress 

a. Property, plant and equipment 

Particulars 

Gross carrying amount 

Balance as at l April 2018 

Additions during the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2019 

Transition impact oflnd AS 116 (refer note 
(iii) below) 

Reclassification on adoption of Ind AS 116 
(refer note (iii) below) 

Restated balance as al I April 2019 
Additi ons during the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2020 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance as at 1 April 2018 

Depreciation for the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2019 

Transition impact of!nd AS 116 (refer note 
(iii) below) 

Restated balance as at I April 2019 

Depreciation for the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2020 

Carrying •mount (net) 

Balance as at 31 March 20 19 

Balance as at 31 March 2020 

b. Capital work in progress 

As at 31 Mnrch, 2019 

Particulars 

Capital work in progress 

Total 

As at 31March,2020 

Particulars 

Capital work in progress 

Total 

Notes: 

Freehold land 

2,775.87 

11.28 

2,787.15 

2,787. 15 

2,787.15 

2,787.15 

2,787.15 

Balance as at 
1April2018 

1,928.32 

1,928.32 

Balance as at 
1April2019 

158.52 

158.52 

(i) For assets pledged as security- refer note 15 & 18. 

(ii) For capital conunitment - refer nole 29(ii). 

Leasehold land Buildini:s 

907,90 5,254.91 

818.32 

907.90 6,073.23 

907.90 

6,073 .23 

6,073.23 

99,84 266.81 

33.25 193.52 

133.09 460.33 

133.09 

460.33 

202.85 

663.18 

774 81 5,612.90 

5,410.05 

Additions during Capitalization/ 
the year Adjustment during 

the year 

719.67 2,489.47 

719.67 2,489.47 

Additions during Capitaliza lion/ 
the year Adjustment during 

the year 

47.49 48.65 

47.49 48.65 

Tani:ible assets 

Factory building Plant and Furniture and 
machinery fittings 

21,234.42 337,924.00 201 86 

1,671.15 0.12 

22,905.57 337,924.00 201.98 

22,905.57 337,924 00 201.98 

22,905.57 337,924.00 201.98 

1,133.08 23,247.73 22 .26 

727.79 17,842.40 12.92 

1,860.87 41,090.13 35.18 

1,860.87 41,090.13 35.18 

765 .05 17,842.39 12.93 

2,625.91 58,932.52 48.11 

21,044.70 296,833.87 166.80 

20,279.65 278,991.48 153.87 

Closing 
balance 

158.52 

158.52 

Closing 
balance 

157 36 

157.36 

Office 
equipments 

87.79 

87.79 

87.79 

4.54 

92.33 

15.78 

5.58 

21.36 

21.36 

7.38 

28.74 

66.43 

63.59 

Computers Motor Transmission 
and data vehicles line 

processing units 

248.86 79.91 12,274.94 

0.58 

249.44 79.91 12,274.94 

249.44 7991 12,274.94 

0.41 

249.85 79.91 12,274.94 

96.00 17.10 1,047 64 

40.24 8.21 648 12 

136.24 25.31 1,695.76 

136.24 25.31 1.695,76 

37.82 8.21 64812 

174.06 33.52 2 ,343.88 

113.20 54.60 10,579. 18 

75 79 46.39 9,931 06 

~/ ~· 
(jG)/e'""""~ 

(iii) On adoption oflnd AS 116, the Company has reclassified unamortised premium for Leasehold Land as 'Right-of-use' assets amounting to Rs 774 80 Lakhs (net) and 'Lease liabilicies' amounting to Rs Nil as at 1April2019 

Total Assets 

Right of Use 
(Ro U) Assets 

(refer note 47) 

380,990.46 

2,501 45 

383,491.91 

907.90 

774.81 774.81 

774.81 383,358.82 

32.10 37 05 

806.91 383,395.87 

25,946.24 

19,51203 

45,458.27 

133.09 

45,325. 18 

33 25 19,558 00 

33.25 &t,Sc83. l 8 

338,033 64 

773 66 318,512 69 

.. 3'< PRtv_ 
t.-~,' 
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TRN Energy Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
(All amou11/s are i11 Rupees /11kl1s, u11/ess otlierwise stated) 

4. Loans (non-current) 
(Unsecured, considered govd un/e.<.< otherwise staled) 

Security deposits 

5. Other financial assets (non-current) 
(Unsecured. co11sidered good unless otherwise stated) 

Foreign exchange forward contract receivable 
Deposits with banks maturing after 12 months (refer note 10) 

6. Deferred tax assets (net) 

(i) The balances comprises temporary differences attributable to the following: 
Deferred tax assets arising on account of 

-Provision for gratuity 

-Provision for compensated absences 
-Unabsorbed depreciation 

-Carry forward losses • 
-Other items 

Less: Deferred tax liability arising on account of 

-Property, plant and equipment 
-Measurement of loan at amortiEed coEt 

Deferred tax asset (net) 

(ii) Movement in deferred tax balances 

Particulars 

Deferred tax asset 

-Carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation • 
-Provisions and others 

Deferred tax liability 

-Property, plant and equipment 
-Others 

Deferred tax assets (net) 

Particulars 

Deferred tax asset 

-Carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation 
-Provisions and others 

Deferred tax liability 

-Property, plant and equipment 

Deferred tax assets (net) 

Note: 

Balance as at 
31 March 2019 

67,147.80 
946,81 

68,094.61 

32,650.14 

-
32,650.14 

35,444.47 

Balance as at 
1April2018 

58,937.68 

208.77 
59, 146.45 

27,621 79 

31,524.66 

Recognised in 
profit or loss 

4,479.80 

406.82 
4,886.62 

3,258.34 

504.43 

3,762.77 

1,123.85 

Recognised in 
profit or loss 

8,210.12 

738.99 
8,949.11 

5,028.35 

3,920.76 

As at As 'lt 
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 --

31 63 34.58 

31.63 34.58 

As at As at 
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

1,909 77 981 47 
1,002 91 

2,912.68 981.47 

As at As at 
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

60.69 42.90 
21.93 30.55 

68,133.20 58,765.55 
3,494.40 8,382.25 
1,272.58 873.36 

72,982.80 68,094.61 

35,908.48 32,650. 14 
501,H 

36,412.91 32,650.14 

36,569.89 35,444.47 

Recognised in OCI Balance as at 
31 March 2020 

- 71,627.60 

1.57 1,355.20 

1.57 72,982.80 

- 35,908.48 

- 504.43 

- 36,412.91 

1.57 36,569.89 

Recognised in OCI Balance as at 
31 March 2019 

- 67,147 80 
(0 95) 946.81 
(0 95) 68,094.61 

- 32,650 14 

(0.95) 35,444.47 

• Accumulated carry forward losses under income tax of Rs. 36,071 .97 lakhs will expire after 8 years from the respective year and hence 
deferred tax asset (OTA) on the same has been recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 

lakhs only and not been recognised on 



TRN Energy Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

7. Other non-current assets 
(Unsecured, considered good unless othenvise stated) 

Capital advances 
Advance to suppliers 

8. Inventories 
(As taken, valued and verified by the management) 

Fuel for thermal power plant# 
Store and spare parts 

As at 
31 March 2020 

130.45 
3,630 07 

3,760.52 

As at 
31March2020 

4,345.93 

1,510.21 

5,856.14 

#Includes coal stock lying with third parties Rs. 2,319.66 lakhs ( 31 March 2019: Rs. 4,660.87 lakhs) 

9. Trade receivable As at 
(u11secured and considered good, 1111/ess othenvisc stated) 31 March 2020 

Trade receivables (refer notes 31 to 35) 50,517.06 

50,517.06 

As at 
31 March 2019 

335.90 
3,630.07 

3,965.97 

As at 
31 March 2019 

6,076.49 
1,682.98 

7,759.47 

As at 
31 March 2019 

62,489.94 

62,489.94 



TRN Energy Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
(All amounts nre in Rupees /akhs, unless otherwise staled) 

10. Cash and bank balances 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Balance with bank: 

-Current accounts 

Cash in hand 

DD in hand 

Other bank balances* 

Deposits with banks maturing within 12 months 

Deposits with banks maturing after 12 months 

Less: Amount disclosed under the head other non-current 
financial assets (refer note 5) 

• Breakup of Fixed deposits pledged 
Provided as security to Government Authorities 

Held as margin money for bank guarantees 

11. Other financial assets (current) 

Transmission charges recoverable 

Contract assets (refer note 34) 

Amount recoverable from supplier 

Foreign exchange forward contract receivable 

Other receivables 

12. Other current assets 

Advance for supply of goods 

Advance to employees 

Prepaid expenses 

As at J\.s at 
31 March 2020 31 Mllrch 2019 

98.05 175.15 
6.96 12.98 
022 

105.23 188.13 

855.68 3,609.14 
1,002.91 

1,858.59 3,609.14 
1,002 91 

855.68 3,609.14 

960.91 3,797.27 

0.22 0.22 
1,858.37 3,608 92 

As at As at 
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

8,811.62 11 ,565.13 
20,950.52 

3,156 99 

118.16 13.97 
8.63 68.85 

29,888.93 14,804.94 

As at As at 
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

4,884.19 2,010 60 

0.66 1.62 
394.19 93.74 

5,279.04 2,105.96 



TRN Energy Privale Limiled 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(All amou11ts are in Rupees /akhs, 1111/ess otherwise stated) 

13. Equity share capital and Instruments entirely equity in nature 

a) Authorised share ca11ital 

Equity shares of Rs 10 each 

Preference share capital of Rs. I 0 each 

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 

0,01 % Non cumulative compulsorily convertible preference share of 
Rs 10 each 

As at 31 March 2020 

No. of shares Amount 

800,000,000 80,000.00 

200,000,000 20,000 ,00 

100,000.00 

625,844, 104 62,584.41 

119,824,000 11,982.40 

74,566.81 

c) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Equity shares at the beginning of the year 

Equity shares al the end of the year 

Preference shares al the beginning of lhe year 

Preference shares al the end of the year 

d) Terms and rights attached to fully paid up shares: 

As at 31 March 2020 

No. of shares Amount 

625,844, I 04 62,584.41 

625,844, l 04 62,584.41 

119,824,000 11,982.40 

119 ,824,000 11,982.40 

As at 31 March 2019 

No. of slrnrcs Amount 

800,000,000 80,000 00 
200,000,000 20,000.00 

100,000.00 

625,844, 104 62,584 41 

119,824,000 11,982 40 

74,566.81 

Asat31March2019 

No. of shares Amount 

625,844, 104 62,584,41 

625,844, I 04 62,584.41 

119,824,000 l 1,982.40 

119,824,000 11,982.40 

i) The Company has only one class of equity shares, havinR a par value of Rs 10 per share. All shares rank pari passu with respect to dividend, voting rights and other terms_ 
Each shareholder is eligible lo one vote per fully paid equity share held The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of shareholders in the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend_ The repayment of equity share capilal in lhe event of liquidation and buy back of shares are possible 
subject to prevalent regulations, In the event of liquidation, normally the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assels of the Company after distribution of 
all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 

ii ) 0.01 % Non cumulative compulsorily convertible preference share of Rs. 10 each have been issued in financial year ended 31 March 2017 The said shares are to be 
compulsorily and automatically converted into 1 fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each on 31December2022. 

e) Shares held by holding company I ultimate holding company. 

As at 31 March 2020 

Equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid up held by: 

ACB (India) Power Limited, the holding company 

(including 2 equity shares {previous year 2 equity shares) held through 
nominee share holders) 

No. of shares 

463,124,637 

0.01 % Non cumulative com11ulsorily convertible preference share of Rs.10 each held by: 

ACB (India) Power Limited, the holding company 88,669, 760 

(The ultimate holding company of'the Company is ACB (India) Limited.) 

f) Details of share holders holdings more than 5% shares in the Company:-

% of shares held 

74.00% 

74.00% 

As at 31 March 2020 

No. of shares 

Equity Share Capital or Rs. 10 each 

ACB (India) Power Limited, the holding company 463,124,637 

Atma Securities Private Limited 73,238,016 

Jaisri Properties and Exports Private Limited 53,333,871 

0.01 % Non cumulative compulsorily convertible preference share of Rs. I 0 each 

ACB (India) Power Limited, the holding company 88,669,760 

Tejswi Impex Private Limited 31,154,240 

% of shares held 

74.00% 

11 70% 

8.52% 

74.00% 

26.00% 

As at 31 March 2019 

No. of shares % of shares held 

463,124,637 74 ,00% 

88,669,760 74.00% 

As at 31 March 2019 

No. of shares % of shares held 

463, 124,637 

73,238,016 

53,333,871 

88,669,760 

31,154,240 

74.00% 

11 ,70% 

8.52% 

74,00% 

26.00% 



TRN Energy Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
(All amounts are in Rupees /akhs, unless otherwise stated) 

14. Other equity 

Equity component of compound financial instruments 

Opening balance ofO 01 % non cumulative redeemable preference shares 

Addition during the year 

Closing balance 

Securities premium 

Opening balance 

Addition during the year 

Closing balance 

As at 
31 March 2020 

1,633.27 

l,633.27 

32.34 

32.34 

The Company has used Securities premium account to record the premium on issue of shares. 

15. 

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Opening balance 

Add: Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 

Closing balance 

Borrowings (non -current) 

Secured term loans (refer notes 38, 39 and 40) 

From banks/ financial institution • 

Unsecured loan 
Liability component of compound financial instrument 0 

0.01 % non cumulative redeemable preference shares 

Others 

Less: Current maturities amount and installment due but 
not paid amount disclosed under the head "Other current 
financial liabilities" (refer note 20) 

Less: Loan processing fees pending amortisation 

(27,199.87) 

(30, 763.10) 

(57,962.97) 

(56.297.36) 

As at 
31March2020 

288,647.90 

3,994.79 

292,642.69 

(17,366.76) 

(1,443.53) 

273,832.40 

273,832.40 

As at 
J I M>trch 2019 

1,633.27 

1,633.27 

32 34 

32.34 

{19,130.65) 

(8,069.22) 

(27,199.87) 

(25,534.26) 

Asat 
31 March 2019 

273,509.26 

3,732 78 

20,566 00 

297,808.04 

(15,318.10) 

(1,676.28) 

280,813.66 

280,813.66 



TRN Energy Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
(All amounts are in Rupees /akhs, unless otherwise slated) 

Footnotes: 

Nature of security 

• (a) Secured term loans from banks/ financial 
(i) Term loans amounting to Rs. 111,625.20 lakhs (31 March 2019 Rs 

95,886. 10 lakhs) from Power Finance Corporation (PFC) is secured by 
first pari passu charge by way of mortgage/hypothecation of all 
movable/immovable properties and assets, all book debts commission 
and other revenues, intangible assets, cash flows (present and future) 
,assignment on project documents of the Company. Further, along with 
other lenders, pledge of I 00% share holding of the Company held by 
sponsors to the project till currency of facility Further secured by 
corporate guarantee of ACB (India) Limited as interim security till 
creation and perfection of security, two external credit rating obtained 
with minimum credit rating of BBB+ on the facility, restore of position 
to maintain yearly DSCR and till approvals of change in law claims 
which is not less than as considered in the Base case financials as 
approved by PFC. Further also secured by personal guarantee of Mr. 
Sanjay Jain (Director and Sponsor) till creation of DSRA. Further also 
secured by Corporate Guarantee of ACBIL for infusion of funds in lieu 
of any shortfall in debt service obligations. 

(ii) Term loans amounting to Rs lakhs 147,661.96 lakhs (31 March 2019 
Rs 150,497.50 lakhs) from Rural Electrification Corporation (REC) is 
secured by first pari passu charge by way of mortgage/hypothecation of 
all movable/immovable properties and assets, all book debts 
commission and other revenues, intangible assets, cash flows (present 
and future) ,assignment on project documents of the Company Further, 
along with other lenders, pledge of I 00% share holding of the 
Company held by sponsors to the project till currency of facility. 
Further secured by corporate guarantee of ACB (India) Limited 
(ACBIL) to, restore of position to maintain yearly DSCR and till 
approvals of change in law claims which is not less than as considered 
in the Base case financials Further secured by personal guarantee of 
Mr. Sanjay Jain (Director and Sponsor) till creation of DSRA of the 
Company. Further also secured by Corporate Guarantee of ACBIL for 
infusion of funds in lieu of any shortfall in debt service obligations. 

(iii)Term loans amounting to Rs. 29,360.74 lakhs (31 March 2019 Rs. 
27, 125.66 lakhs) is secured by first pari passu charge by way of 
mortgage/hypothecation of all movable/immovable properties and 
assets, all book debts commission and other revenues, intangible assets, 
cash flows (present and future) ,assignment on project documents of the 
Company. Further, along with other lenders, pro rata pledge of I 00% 
share holding of the Company held by sponsors to the project till 
currency of facility. Further secured by corporate guarantee of ACBIL 
to infuse funds to maintain year wise DSCR level as per Base case 
approved by the lenders, Further also secured by Corporate Guarantee 
of ACBIL for infusion of funds in lieu of any shortfall in debt service 
obligations. 

•• (b) 0.01 % non cumulative preference shares 

Terms of repayment of principal and interest 

Loan is repayable in 80 structured quarterly instalments 
starting from January 2018 along with interest @ IO 50% 
per annum However, due to default in pay1nent of interest 
and principal obligation, the bank has charged additional 
interest and also levied liquidated damages in accordance 
with facility agreement 

Rupee Term Loan was initially repayable in 40 equal 
quarterly instalments starting from September 2017 along 
with range of interest @ 13.25% to 16.50% per annum. 
The lender has subsequently elongated its repayments 
structure to 80 structured quarterly installments w.e. f 
March 2018. Further, the rate of interest has also been 
revised to I 0 50% per annum. However, due to default in 
payment of interest and principal obligation, the bank has 
charged additional interest and also levied liquidated 
damages in accordance with facility agreement. 

ECB loan is repayable in 52 structured quarterly 
instalments starting from June 2017 along with the 
interest rate of6 months LIBOR plus 3% which is ranging 
@ 9.34% to 11.70% per annum. However, due to default 
in payment of interest and principal obligation, the bank 
has charged additional interest and also levied liquidated 
damages in accordance with facility agreement. 

0 01% non cumulative preference shares having maturity of8 years from the date of issue. Each of the redeemable preference shares 
shall be redeemed at par at Rs 10 each in five equal installments beginning from the end of 4th year (i.e., 2021-22) till the end of 8th 
year. 



TRN Energy Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise staled) 

16. Other financial liabilities (non-current) 

Retention money (refer note 30) 

Recovery on account of encashment of contract bank guarantees (pending 
settlements of claims (refernote 30) 

17. Provisions (non-current) 

Provision for employee benefits 

-Provision for gratuity 

-Provision for compensated absences 

18. Borrowings (current) 

Secured loans from banks" (refer notes 38, 39 and 40) 

-Term loan - WCDL 

-Cash credits from banks (repayable on demand) 

Unsecured loans from others# 
Inter corporate deposits 

-From related party (refer note 45) 

-From others 

Footnotes: 

* Nature of security 

Secured term loans from banks 
Working capital demand loans (WCDL) and cash credit amounting to 
Rs. 20,885.41 lakhs (31 March 2019 Rs. 20,564.31 lakhs) is secured 
by first pari passu charge by way of mortgage/hypothecation of all 
movable/immovable properties and assets, all book debts commission 
and other revenues, intangible assets, cash flows (present and future), 
assignment on project documents of the company. Further, secured by 
guarantees of sponsors to the Project, 

Asal 
31 March 2020 

20,269.72 

8,698.37 

28,968.09 

Asal 
31 March 2020 

171.66 

53.02 

224.68 

Asal 
31March2020 

9,300 00 

11,585.41 

35,708.04 

2,163.95 

58,757.40 

A.sat 
31 March 2019 

21,301.29 

8,698 37 

29,999.66 

A.sat 
31 March 2019 

121.56 

76.17 

197.73 

Asal 
31 March 2019 

2,800.00 

17,764.31 

33,268.25 

53,832.56 

Terms of repayment of principal and interest 

Repayable on demand with a monthly interest @ ranging 
from 10.50% to 12.50 % p.a 

# Inter corporate deposit repayable on demand at an interest rate of 12.5% to 15% p.a. 



TRN Energy Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise slated) 

19. 

20. 

21. 

22. 

Trade and other payables* 

Payables to related parties (refer note 45) 

Payables to others 

•All payables are current. 

Disclosure relating to Micro, small and medium enterprises (MSME) :(refer note 51) 

(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to 
any supplier at the end of the year 

(b) The amount of interest paid under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act"), along with the 
amounts of the payment made beyond the appointed day during the year 

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 
year 

( e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act 

Other financial liabilities (current) 

Current maturities oflong term borrowings (refer note 15) 

Installment due oflong term borrowings (refer note 38) 
Interest accrued and due on borrowings (refer note 38) 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 

Retention money/security deposits 

Capital creditors 

Dues to employees 

Other current liabilities 

Statutory dues payable 

Other current liabilities 

Provisions (current) 

Provision for employee benefits 

-Provision for gratuity 

-Provision for compensated absences 

As at 
31 March 2020 

15,921.09 

19,362.98 

35,284.07 

As at 
31March2020 

Asat 

11,478.21 

5,888.55 

8,699.31 

8,546.43 

422.40 

1,336.46 

151.88 

36,523.24 

31 March 2020 

As at 

3,807.98 

8.25 

3,816.23 

31 March 2020 

2.01 

9.74 

11.75 

As at 
31 March 2019 

15,406.83 

17,189.66 

32,S\16.49 

As at 
31 March 2019 

15,318.1 0 

2,345.03 

365.96 

2,590.99 

187.53 

20,807.61 

As at 
31 March 2019 

As at 

3,013.38 

0.02 

3,013.40 

31 March 2019 

1.22 

11.25 

12.47 



TRN Energy Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

23. Revenue from operations 

24. 

25. 

Sale of products 

Sale of thermal power (refer notes 31 to 34) 

Sale of coal 

Other income 

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost:-

-Interest from bank 

-Interest from customer (refer note 34) 

-Interest from others 

Other non OJlerating income:-

-Rent income 

-Miscellaneous income 

Employee benefits expenses 

Salaries, wages and bonus 

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 43(a)) 

Staff welfare expenses 

26. Finance costs 

Interest expenses from financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 
Interest on term loans (refer note 39) 

Interest on cash credits/ working capital (refer note 39) 

Interest on inter corporate deposits 

Unwinding of 0.01 % non-cumulative redeemable preference shares 

Other borrowing cost 

Bank and other charges 

Amortisation of loan processing fees 

For the year ended 
31 March 2020 

76,182.12 
422.26 

76,604.38 

For the year ended 
31 March 2020 

198.72 

541.67 

1.80 

5.36 

25.46 

773.01 

For the year ended 
31March2020 

1,358.74 

80.26 

81.78 

1,520.78 

For the year ended 
31March2020 

32,565.61 

2,239.51 

5,798.60 

262.01 

255.96 

239.85 

41,361.54 

For the year ended 
31 March 2019 

121,876.80 

121,876.80 

For the year ended 
31 March 2019 

214.71 

4,452.23 

8.40 

3.28 

2.80 

4,681.42 

For the year ended 
31March2019 

1,245.33 

75.50 

13.46 

1,334.29 

For the year ended 
31 March 2019 

31, 745.43 

2,185.47 

7,181.81 

244.20 

1,683.07 

720.35 

43,760.33 



TRN Energy Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 

(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

27. Other expenses 

Repair, running and maintenance: 

-Plant and machinery 
-Building 
-Others 

Transmission charges 
Ash disposal expenses 

Revenue from sale of power earlier recognised now written off (refer note 34) 
Deductions on account of short supply of power (refer notes 33 and 35) 
Insurance 
Legal and professional fees * 
Security expenses 
Rates, taxes and fees 
Rent (refer note 47(iii)) 
Communication expenses 
Travelling and conveyance 
Foreign exchange loss (net) 
Miscellaneous expenses 

*Includes statutory auditor's remuneration (excluding taxes) as under: 

Statutory audit fees 

Taxation matters 

28. Earnings/(loss) per equity share 

Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to equity share holders 

Number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each at the beginning of the year 

Number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each at the end of the year 

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each at 
the end of the year for calculation of basic earnings per share 

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each at 
the end of the year for calculation of diluted earnings per 
share 

Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) - on loss 

Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) - on loss 

Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) - on Total comprehensive income/(loss) 

Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) - on Total comprehensive income/(loss) 

Nominal value per share (Rs.) 

For the year ended 
31March2020 

2,394.83 
22.44 
87.92 

791.77 
295.03 
766.27 

3,478.81 

367.98 
414.46 

94.94 
1,107.08 

63.84 
4.87 

105.65 
2,483.81 

200.69 

12,680.39 

4.86 

3.50 

8.36 

For the year ended 
31March2020 

-30,760.18 

-30,763.10 

625,844, 104 

625,844,104 

625,844, I 04 

625,844, I 04 

-4.91 

-4.91 

-4.92 

-4.92 

10.00 

For the year ended 
31 March 2019 

3,132.85 
116.15 
212.64 

1,072.46 
798.37 

315.94 
246.92 

88.05 
1,771.40 

64.19 
22.70 

112.88 
777.73 
46.73 

8,779.01 

4.86 

8.26 

13.12 

For the year ended 
31 March 2019 

-8,071.02 

-8,069.22 

625,844, 104 

625,844,104 

625,844, I 04 

625,844, I 04 

-l.29 

-l.29 

-l.29 

-1.29 

10.00 



TRN Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 
(All amount "re in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

29. Contingent liabilities, claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts, capital commitments 
etc:-

(i) Contingent liabilities, claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts: 

a. For the Assessment year 2012-13, the Assistant Commission of Income Tax ("ACIT") had filed 
an appeal before Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (IT AT) against the order of Commissioner of 
Income Tax (Appeals), wherein additions made by the ACIT amounting to Rs. 431.84 lakhs was 
disallowed. The ACIT appeal was dismissed by IT AT in favour of the Company vide order 
dated 01 January 2018. Against the order of JTAT, the Income Tax Department has filed an 
appeal before the Delhi High Court and the matter is pending before the Delhi High Court. 

b. The Company has received show cause notice (SCN) dated 20 April 2020 from Directorate 
General of Goods and Services Tax Intelligence stating that why a demand of Rs. 112.60 lakhs 
towards service tax along with penalty and interest for the period 2015-16 to 2017-18 (upto June 
2017) should not be raised with respect to the service tax under reverse charge mechanism on 
certai n ·ervices re~eived by the Compru1y from outside India. The Company is contesting U1is 
based on the facts and relevant provisions of law and has accordingly not made any provision 
towards this amount. 

c. The Company has received an order dated 07 July 2020 from Employees' State Insurance 
Corporation (ESIC), Raipur raising a demand of Rs. 14,243.57 lakhs towards ESI contribution 
for the period 01 June 2016 to 31March2017. The Company has filed Writ Petition (Labour) 
before Chhattisgarh High Court for quashing the demand raised as the Company firmly believes 
that the said demand is untenable in nature and not based on the facts of the case. Further, 
Chhattisgarh High Court has granted a stay on this demand. Accordingly, the Company has not 
recognised any provision against such demand. 

d. The Company has entered into a PPA dated 26 May 2015 with Chattisgarh State Power Trading 
Company Limited (CSPTrdCo.) for supply of 5% or net injection to CSPTrdCo w.e.f 1 January 
20 16 i.e planned COD of I •1 Unit. However, commissioning of the l 51 Unit of the plant was 
delayed which was beyond the control of the Company. The Company as per the provisions of 
the said PPA had offered to supply the power from alternate source but the CSPTrsdCo. did not 
take U1c power as offered by the Company. SPTrd o has surprisingly demanded a Liquidated 
Damages of Rs. 475 lakhs. The ompany is contesti ng this demand based on U1e facls and 
relevant provisions of the PPA and hos accordingly not made any pr visions t wards U1is 
amount. 

e. The Company has to deposit electricity duty on auxiliary consumption with the state of 
Chhattisgarh on monthly basis. The Company has not been able to deposit the same due to 
financial constraints and lack of sufficient working capital in the Company. The Company 
has charged the electricity duty to the Statement of Profit and loss and has outstanding 
liability of Rs. 3,142.77 lakhs towards the same as at 31 March 2020. However, the 
Company has not made any provision for the interest due to delay/ non-payment of 
electricity duty as the Company is hopeful of getting the waiver of the same. 

(ii) Capital commitments: 

The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advance) was 
Rs. 1,392.24 lakhs as at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019 Rs. 1,225.01 lakhs). 

30. There is net credit balance of Rs. 20,269.72 lakhs of BGR Energy Systems Limited (BGR), the EPC 
Contractor for the 2x300 MW TPP of the Company, and China Western Power Corporation (CWPC), 
which primarily includes retention amount retained from the billing as per the contract and also includes 
certain debit balances towards the work done by the Company on behalf of BGR and CWPC. 
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company had invoked the Performance Bank Guarantees of Rs. 
8,698.37 lakhs and Advance Bank Guarantees of Rs. 2,055.11 lakhs submitted by BGR, on account of 
non-fulfilment of performance obligations by BGR as per the terms of the contract (EPC Contract) entered 
into between the Company and BGR. Out of the above, the Company had encashed Performance Bank 
Guarantee (PBG) of Rs. 8,698.37 lakhs in the previous year. 

Subsequent to above stated encashment of PBG, BGR has filed a petition before Delhi High Court inter 
alia praying for restraining the Company from encashing the other bank guarantees. Delhi High Court vide 
its order dated 2 July 2018 stated that the Company is restrained from receiving any further amounts 
pursuant to the invocation of bank guarantees till the next date of hearing, subject to the condition that 
BGR shall keep the un-encashed Bank Guarantees alive. 

During the current year, the Company has also invoked Performance Bank Guarantees (PBGs) of CWPC 
of USO 18.61 Million through advising bank, i.e. Axis Bank, due to delays in the commissioning of the 
project. However, as informed by the advising bank, CWPC has taken injunction on the encashment of the 
said PBG in the Courts of China. The Company has not received any communication from the advising 
bank in this regard. 

Further, BGR has also invoked arbitration as per the terms of EPC Contract and as a result of this, the 
Company and BGR have constituted an Arbitral Tribunal and BGR has withdrawn the above stated 
Petition from Delhi High Court pertaining to BG encashment. The matter is now pending before the 
Arbitral Tribunal for the final settlement of the claims/ counter claims made by BGR and the Company. 
The Company will be able to evaluate all the above balances only when dispute between the parties is 
settled by the Arbitrator. 

Pending the final outcome of the arbitration proceedings, the Company has disclosed the aforesaid net 
amount of Rs. 20,269.72 lakhs and encashed amount of Rs. 8,698.37 lakhs under the head "Other non­
current financial liabilities" in the financial statement. 

31. The Company has entered into a Power Purchase Agreement dated 25 July 2013 (PTC-PPA) with PTC 
India Limited based on the back to back Power Purchase Agreement (Procurer PPA) executed by PTC 
with Uttar Pradesh Discoms dated 25 July 2013. PTC PPA and Procurer PPA were entered for the supply 
of Aggregated Contracted Capacity 390 MW for a period of twenty-five years from the Scheduled 
Delivery Date of the project. 

The Company supplied 150 MW of power to Uttar Pradesh Discoms (UP Discoms) from 2 December 
2016 to 16 May 2017 as the LTOA from Power Grid Corporation oflndia Limited (PGCIL) was available 
only for 150 MW. Further, the No Objection Certificate (NOC) from UP Discoms was available for 150 
MW only. PGCIL operationalised the LTOA of balance 240 MW w.e.f. 17 May 2017 and accordingly 
supply of 390 MW power, i.e. the Aggregated Contracted Capacity could commence only from 17 May 
2017 after the NOC for the balance capacity of 240 MW was available from UP Discoms. As the 
Company had started supplying Aggregated Contracted Capacity of 390 MW to Uttar Pradesh Discoms 
w.e.f 17 May 2017, the Delivery Date has to be reckoned from 17 May 2017 and thus the First Contract 
Year for the purpose of Procurers PP A should have commenced from the date on which the Company 
started supplying the Aggregated Contracted Capacity of390 MW i.e. w.e.f. 17 May 2017. Consequently, 
as per the provisions of the PTC PPA and Procurer PPA, the Scheduled Delivery Date is to be extended as 
per Article 4.7.1 of the PTC PPA and Procurer PPA and the last contract year shall end on the 25th 
anniversary of the Revised Scheduled Delivery Date. Hence, the Company had considered tariff applicable 
for first year for the supply of power to Uttar Pradesh Discoms for the period 17 May 2017 to 31 March 
2018 and accordingly the tariff applicable for the second year was considered for the year 01 April 2018 to 
31 March 2019. However, PTC and Uttar Pradesh Discoms have disputed the Scheduled Delivery Date 
and have treated the Scheduled Delivery Date as 02 December 2016. 

The Company being aggrieved by the stand taken by PTC and Uttar Pradesh Discoms, had filed the 
Petition before Hon'ble Uttar Pradesh Electricity Regulatory Commission (UPERC) in June 2018. 
However, UPERC directed the Company to file the same Petition with the Hon ' ble Central Electricity 
Regulatory Commission (CERC). Hence, in February 2019, the Company filed petition before Hon'ble 
Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) seeking 17 May 2017 as the Scheduled Delivery Date. 
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In this Petition, the Company has also challenged other matters such as delay in payments of 
Monthly/Supplementary Bills and failure to establish Payment Security Mechanism, wrong deduction of 
rebate on monthly energy bills, non- reimbursement of transmission charges, excess charge of trading 
margin, etc and has also claimed Late Payment Surcharge (LPS). The Company has recognised revenue of 
Rs. 1,029.13 lakhs, Rs. 1,315.86 lakhs and Rs. 1,004.73 lakhs during the year ended 31 March 2018, 2019 
and 2020 respectively on account of the difference in tariffs considered by the Company and tariff 
considered by PTC/Uttar Pradesh Discoms. Total revenue recorded over the period till 31 March 2020 
w.r.t. above said matter is Rs. 3,713.58 lakh. 

In the above stated petition, the Company has also contested the trading margin charged by PTC despite 
non fulfilment of certain deliverables on the part of PTC as per the provisions of the PPA. The amount of 
trading margin on account of the above is Rs. 5,084.62 lakhs upto the period ended 31 March 2020 
(Rs.3,992.81 lakhs upto the period ended 31March2019). However, the Company has recorded the same 
as expenses in the financial statements. 

There have been delays in the payments made by PTC and also partial payments have been made to the 
Company towards the power supplied. Despite the delays in payments and partial payments by PTC, PTC 
has deducted the Rebate of Rs. 2, 779.21 lakhs upto 31 March 2020 on the payments made by it to the 
Company. Since the Rebate deducted by PTC is not as per the provisions of the PTC PP A, the Company 
has contested the same in the above mentioned Petition and has not accounted for the same. Further, the 
Company has also claimed LPS in the said Petition as per the terms of PPA due to delay in payments made 
by PTC. The Petition is currently pending before Hon'ble CERC. 

32. The Company has claimed the Capacity Charges for the period January 2019 to March 2019 based on the 
Declared Capacity informed by it to UP Discoms considering the fact that the plant of the Company was 
available during the relevant period for the supply of power to UP Discoms though the supplies were 
curtailed owing to regulation invoked by PGCIL. However, PTC India Limited/ UP Discoms have not 
accepted the said Declared Capacity and have accepted the reduced capacity due to technical issues/ 
Regulation (restrictions on transmission of power) imposed by PGCIL. The Company has filed Petition 
with CERC w.r.t the claim on account of Capacity Charges due to the above mentioned difference in 
Declared Capacity. In the financial year 2018-19, the Company had recognised the revenue of Rs. 
4,347.13 lakhs on account of above mentioned difference in Declared Capacity and accordingly the 
Company had not considered the penalty of Rs. 839.03 lakhs imposed by PTC/Uttar Pradesh Discoms. The 
Petition is currently pending before Hon' ble CERC. During the current year also, the Company has 
recognised revenue based on the Declared Capacity informed by it to UP Discoms as the supplies of the 
Company were curtailed owing to regulation invoked by PGCIL. As a result of this, the Company has 
recognised revenue of Rs. 7,285.39 lakhs for the current year which has not been accepted by PTC/ UP 
Discoms. Further, the Company has not recognised penalty of Rs. 1,396.05 lakhs on account of this short 
supply of power. The Company will file Interlocutory Application (IA) in the petition mentioned above 
incorporating the updated amount. 

33. During the current year, the Company has also claimed the Capacity Charges for the certain periods based 
on the Declared Capacity informed by it to UP Discoms considering the fact that the plant of the Company 
was available during the relevant period for the supply of power to UP Discoms though the supplies were 
curtailed owing to certain reasons such as flooding in mines, delays in receipt of payments from PTC/ UP 
Discoms, etc. However, PTC India Limited/ UP Discoms have not accepted the said Declared Capacity 
and have accepted the reduced capacity. In the current year, the Company has not recognised the revenue 
of Rs. 13,550.25 lakhs on account of above mentioned difference in Declared Capacity and accordingly 
the Company has also considered resultant penalty of Rs. 2,107.81 lakhs imposed by PTC/Uttar Pradesh 
Discoms. 

34. The Company had filed Petition before Central Electricity Regulatory Regulation (CERC) under Section 
79 (1) (b) and 79 (1) (f) of the Electricity Act, 2003 for claiming compensation on account of events 
pertaining to change in law as per the terms of Power Purchase Agreement dated 25 July 2013 (PTC-PPA) 
executed between the Company and PTC India Limited and as per the terms of the back to back Power 
Purchase Agreement dated 25 July 2013 executed by PTC with Uttar Pradesh Discoms. The Hon' ble 
CERC vide its order dated 12 June 2019 has allowed the claims towards certain change in law events 
along with the carrying costs on the same. 
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The Company had recognised revenue of Rs. 23,289.94 lakhs during the financial year ended 31 March 
2019 and Rs. 14,681.09 lakhs during the financial year ended 31 March 2018 and carrying costs thereon 
amounting to Rs. 4,452.23 lakhs during the financial year ended 31 March 2019 (31March2018 Nil) on 
account of said change in law events for the period till 31 March 2019. The aggregate amount of revenue 
recognised on account of change in law events upto 31 March 2019 was Rs. 42,423.26 lakhs (i.e. sum of 
Rs 23,289.94 lakhs, Rs. 14681.09 lakhs and Rs. 4,452.23 lakhs). 

During the current year, the Company raised the revised invoice dated 07 March 2020 of Rs. 53,4 76.22 
lakhs, which included Rs. 43,010.09 lakhs towards change in law events and Rs. 10,466.13 lakhs towards 
income on account of carrying costs in relation to the said change in law events for the period upto 
31March2019. The said invoice has been subsequently approved for Rs. 41,657.00 lakhs towards change 
in law events (including carrying cost) by PTC/ Uttar Pradesh Discoms. Therefore, the Company has 
considered the revenue to the extent of Rs. 41,657.00 lakhs only and has accordingly written off earlier 
recognised revenue of Rs. 766.27 lakhs (difference between Rs. 42,423.26 lakhs revenue recognised 
earlier and Rs 41,657.00 lakhs approved by PTC/ UP Discoms). 

Further, during the current year, the Company has recognised revenue on account Change in law of 
Rs. 9,392.12 lakhs and Rs. 541.67 lakhs towards income on account of carrying costs in relation to the said 
change in law events for the period 01 April 2019 to 31 March 2020. The invoice for the same has been 
raised on 20 July 2020 and therefore the same has been shown as Contract assets under the head "Other 
Current Financial Assets". 

35. The Company has entered into a PPA dated 26 May 2015 with Chhattisgarh State Power Trading 
Company Limited (CSPTrdCo.) for supply of 5% of net injection to CSPTrdCo. w.e.f. 01 January 2016 i.e 
planned COD of 1•t Unit. However, COD of the plant was achieved on 01 May 2017 due to the delays 
which were beyond the control of the Company. During the current year and in the past also, the Company 
was not able to deliver the 5% of net injection to CSPTrdCo. due to some technical reasons and financial 
constraints as both the Units were not operational. Therefore, the Company had requested the CSPTrdCo 
to kindly allow the Company to compensate the shortfall in the future periods. However, CSPTrdCo has 
now levied the penalties of Rs. 1,550.02 lakhs for the period May 2017 to October 2017, Rs. 267 .62 lakhs 
for the financial year 2018-19 and Rs. 1,296.68 lakhs for the financial year 2019-20 on account of short 
supply. Considering the demand for penalty towards short supply of power raised by CSPTrdCo, the 
Company has made a provision of Rs. 1,371.00 lakhs in the current year for the period upto March 2020. 
The Company will also explore the option of compensating this shortfall by supplying extra power in 
future. Therefore, the final outcome of this liability will be known only upon the settlement of the same 
with CSPTrdCo. 

36. Water Resource Department, Chhattisgarh (WRD) had allocated 19.00 MCM (Million Cu.M) p.a. water to 
the Company from Kurket River. The Company had deposited an amount of Rs. 3,463.35 lakhs as an 
advance towards construction of anicuts and had also deposited security deposit of Rs. 166.72 lakhs. 
Permission was granted to the Company to draw 19.00 MCM of water per annum from the natural or 
government water source till completion or start of first storage of Anicuts I Baihamuda Barrage. 

The Company has received the bills of water charges on the basis of 90% of the 19.00 MCM p.a till 30 
September 2019 and recorded the same accordingly. Thereafter, WRD has stopped the billing of water 
charges. The Company has made the provision towards water charge for the period October 2019 to March 
2020 on the same principles, i.e. on 90% of the 19.00 MCM p.a at the applicable rates. The Company is 
also taking up the matter with WRD for revising the invoices based on the actual drawl of water instead of 
the 90% of the 19.00 MCM p.a. 

As mentioned above, the Company has an advance deposit of Rs. 3,630.07 lakhs with WRD and therefore 
it has not made payments towards water charges bills and has not accounted for the interest liability due to 
non-payments of the water charges and is contesting the demands raised by WRD. In view of the above, 
the Company has shown amount outstanding of Rs. 1,975.05 lakhs towards the water charges under the 
head "Trade payables" and has separately shown the above mentioned advances deposited of Rs. 3,630.07 
lakhs as "Advance to suppliers" under the head "Other non-current assets". Pending the settlement, the 
Company has not adjusted this advance with the liability. 
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37. Other legal cases: 

The Company is also involved in certain other lawsuits, claims and proceedings, either initiated by or 
against the Company, whether asserted or not. However, based on facts currently available, the 
management believes that these matters both individually and in aggregate will not have a material effect 
on the financial statements of the Company. 

38. The Company has availed a term loan facility from consortium of lenders comprising of REC Limited 
(REC), Power Finance Corporation ('PFC') and India Infrastructure Finance Company (UK) Limited 
("IIFCL" or "ECB lender") (together called as "term lenders"). The Company has also availed working 
capital facilities of Rs. 43,000 lakhs (fund based and non-fund based) from consortium of lenders 
comprising of Axis Bank Limited, HDFC Bank Limited, Canara Bank and Indusind Bank Limited 
(together called as "working capital lenders"). Following are the outstanding amounts of facilities availed 
by the Company: 

Amount in Rs. Lakhs 
As at As at 

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

Term loans 288,647.90 273,509.26 

Cash credits and working capital demand loans 20,885.41 20,564.31 

Total 309,533.31 294,073.57 

The Company defaulted in repayment of the dues of term lenders in September 2019 and October 2019, 
which were paid in the month of January 2020 and February 2020 respectively. Further, the Company 
could not repay dues of term lenders from November 2019 and subsequent periods. Consequently, REC 
being the lead lender to the term loan facility declared loan account of the Company as Non-Performing 
Assets (NPA) in the month of March 2020. Jn the month of August 2020, the Company received an 
amount of Rs. 26,021 lakhs as part payment towards its Change in law claim for the period upto 31 March 
2019 under first tranche of Atmnirbhar scheme of Government of India. The Company utilized this 
amount to clear overdues till 29 February 2020 and has applied for moratorium from 01 March 2020 in 
accordance with RBI guidelines which has been approved by the rupee term lenders. The ECB lender has 
approved Covid loan moratorium w.r.t principal repayments. However, accrued interest shall be recovered 
on monthly basis starting from September 2020 in 6 months along with regular interest. Conversion of 
accrued interest to FITL would be provided only after obtaining specific approvals from RBI. Considering 
incipient stress in the Company, its term lenders have appointed concurrent auditors/ Agency of Special 
Monitoring (ASM) in November 2019 for cash flow monitoring. 

Further, the Company could not pay dues of working capital lenders for October 2019 and for subsequent 
periods till January 2020 which were paid in parts during the period from November 2019 to February 
2020. Dues of certain working lenders were not paid for the month of February 2020. In the month of 
August 2020, the Company cleared overdue till 29 February 2020 and has applied for moratorium from 01 
March 2020 in accordance with RBI guidelines which has been approved by the working capital lenders. 

The Company has also approached its rupee term lenders for approval of flexible structuring scheme in 
accordance with RBI guidelines. Accordingly, an Independent Evaluation Committee ('IEC') has been 
constituted to evaluate the flexible structuring proposal. A Techno Economic Viability Study ('TEV 
Study') report and valuation report of 2x300 MW thermal power project of the Company was prepared in 
accordance with prevailing guidelines. Both TEV Study report and valuation report have been approved by 
the Lenders and IEC members. The IEC has recommended proposal of flexible structuring for 
consideration of the rupee term lenders. The flexible structuring was to be implemented with cut-off date 
as 01 December 2020. This implies that TRNEPL was required to clear all its overdues from 01 September 
2020 to 30 November 2020. The Company has cleared dues of all lenders till 30 September 2020. 
However, working capital account with Axis Bank has slipped to Sub-standard Category on 1 December 
2020 due to "Out of Order" status as in accordance with RBI guidelines. The Company is required to clear 
entire dues of Axis Bank to upgrade the account. The payment to all the lenders could not be made as the 
Company did not received the entire dues of Change in law under Atamnirbhar Scheme. The Company is 
expecting recovery of change in law receivables due from Uttar Pradesh Power Corporation Limited 
('UPPCL') under second tranche of Liq~it a£ ·age announced under Atamnirbhar Scheme. The funds 
once received would be utilized to pay ~¥u ~ Lenders. 

~ (0 

- UJ New Delhi ~ z. ~ 

~ 
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The flexible structuring proposal once approved by the appropriate committee of the rupee term lenders 
will provide a moratorium on principal repayments from 31 December 2020 to 31 March 2022. 

39. During the current year, the Company has defaulted/ delayed in the repayment of term lenders ' dues. As a 
result of this, the lenders have levied additional interest/ penal interest. The Company has charged the said 
additional interest/ penal interest to the Statement of Profit and loss during the current year. However, the 
Company has contested the same with its lenders because of various reasons and is expecting the reversal 
of the same in near future. The reversal of such interest will be accounted for once the same is approved by 
the lenders. 

40. Loan moratorium: 

The Company has availed moratorium for its various credit facilities (with respect to interest and principal 
obligations) in accordance with COVID-19 Regulatory Package issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) 
vide its circular dated 27 March 2020 and 23 May 2020. Consequently, the Company has not paid 
instalment or interest for the period from 01 March 2020 till 31 August 2020. Further, the Company has 
requested lenders to provide letter of confirmation and revised payment schedule for its various loans. 
Based on the revised schedule received, the Company has considered the following treatment for all its 
loans outstanding as on 31 March 2020: 

i. The interest accrued for the month of March 2020 is included under the head 'Interest accrued but 
not due' under "Other current financial liabilities" of the financial statements. 

11. The repayment schedule along with the residual tenor of the term loans has been shifted across the 
board by six months considering period of 01 March 2020 to 31 August 2020 as moratorium period. 
The amount of term loan instalments not paid during moratorium period continues to appear as loan 
outstanding. Further, current maturities of term loans have been calculated based on revised 
repayment schedule. 

The Company has availed COVID Funded Interest Term Loan (CFITL) in accordance with applicable RBI 
guidelines. The interest on the fund based working capital facilities being cash credits and working capital 
demand loans, which have accrued between 01 March 2020 to 3 I August 2020 shall be paid on or before 
3 I March 2021 along with other dues as per the directions stipulated by Reserve Bank of India in this 
regard. 

41. Impact of COVID-19: 

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe and in India has contributed to a significant decline 
and volatility in the global and Indian financial markets and slowdown in the economic activities. Given 
the uncertainty over the potential macro-economic condition, the impact of the global health pandemic 
cannot be assessed with certitude, however, the Company will continue to closely monitor any material 
change in future economic conditions. 

Prevailing circumstances of COVID-19 and the uncertainty over its longe~ity have been extremely 
challenging for the entire Indian economy. The unprecedented situation has severally impacted operations 
of the Company in terms of slump in demand for power. The lower demand of power across the country 
has also led to decline in spot price of power sold on exchange, which represents a certain portion of the 
power being supplied by the Company. 

The operations of the Company are likely to remain impacted during the financial year 2020-21 due to 
ongoing COVID-19 situation and can spill over to the financial year 2021-22 ifthe ongoing COVID-19 
crisis continues. The liquidity of the Company is likely to be in restricted range during this time period 
due to subdued demand in power sector. 
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42. During the current year: 
a) the Company started facing financial stress as explained in various notes of financial 

statements: 
• Note no. 38- Regarding Company's account being declared as "Non-Performing Assets" 

(NPA) and appointment of concurrent auditors/ Agency of Special Monitoring (ASM) in 
November 2019 for cash flow monitoring. 

• Note no. 31, 32 ,33 & 34- Regarding various disputes going on with PTC India for 
recovery of various amounts. 

• Note no. 35 in relation to demands raised against the Company for not supplying 5% 
power to CSPTrdCo. 

• Note no 29 (e) & 36- Default subsisting in the Company in relation to electricity duty 
payment and water charges payable. 

• Non-payment of TDS liability on interest by the Company till date. 

b) Further, both the units of Company's power plant have been operating at lower Plant Load 
Factor (PLF) resulting in overall PLF of 3 7% in current year. 

The Company could not operate the plants at optimum levels due to non-availability of sufficient 
working capital limits. The fund based working capital limits with the Company is Rs 20,500 lakhs 
which is insufficient considering the capacity of the plant. The Company made several requests to its 
working capital lenders for enhancing the said limits but the lenders did not provide adequate 
support. Also, delay in receipt of proceeds against Change in law bills further lead to shortage of 
working capital resulting into shortfall in the payment for coal procurement, delay /non-payment of 
statutory dues such as TDS, electricity duty, water charges, etc. 

However, the Company is expecting payments towards its Change in law bills in the near future. The 
Company is also working actively to resolve/settle its disputes. Further, the Company is also in the 
process of finalizing the restructuring plan with its lenders. This will result in better financial 
position of the company and the Company will be able to generate sufficient working capital to run 
its power plant at optimum levels so as to meet its obligation to term lenders, working capital 
lenders, vendors and obligation towards statutory dues. 

Accordingly, management believes that the going concern assumption is appropriate. 

43. Employee Benefits 

a) Defined contribution plan: 

Amount of Rs. 80.26 lakhs (31 March 2019 Rs. 75.50 lakhs) pertaining to employers' contribution to 
provident fund, pension fund, employee state insurance and administration charges is recognized as an 
expense and included in "Employee benefits expenses" in Note 25. 

b) Defined benefit plan: 

Gratuity plan: 
The Company operates a gratuity plan which provides lump sum benefits linked to the qualifying 
salary and completed years of service with the Company at the time of separation. Every employee 
who has completed 5 years of continuous service is entitled to receive gratuity at the time .of his 
retirement or separation from the organization whichever is earlier. However the condition of 
completion of 5 years of service is not applicable where separation is on account of disability or death 
of an employee. The gratuity benefit that is payable to any employee, is computed in accordance with 
the provisions of"The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972". 

The Gratuity Fund 

The following table sets forth the status of the Gratuity Plan of the Company and the amounts 
recognised in the Balance Sheet, Incidental Expense during construction period (included under Capital 
Work in Progress) and Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2020 

!Chan!!es in the nresent value of defined benefit 
loblilrntion 
Present value as at the beginning of the year 122.78 
Included in Statement of nrofit and loss /CWIP 

- Current service cost 38.43 
- Interest cost 9.47 
- Benefits paid ( 1.50) 
Included in other cornnrchcnsivc income 
-Change in financial assumptions 22.68 
-Change in demographic assumptions 5.35 
-Experiences variance (23.54) 

Past service cost -

Present value as at the end of the year 173.67 

Particulars As at 
31 March 2020 

Prcse.nl va lue of unfunded obligations 
Net liability 173.67 

173.67 
Amount in balance sheet 
Liability 173.67 
Net liabi lit)'. is bifurcated as fo ll ows: 
Long term 171.66 
Short term 2.01 
Net liability 173.67 

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows: 

Economic assumptions: 

For the year ended 
31 March 2019 

81 .48 

38.47 
6.35 

(0.77) 

2.1 I 
-

(4.86) 

-
122.78 

As at 
31 March 2019 

122.78 

122.78 

122.78 

121.56 
1.22 

122.78 

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary escalation rate. The discount rate is 
generally based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a 
term that matches that of the liabilities and the salary growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis. The assumptions used are summarized in the 
following table: 

Particulars Assumptions as at Assumptions as at 
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

Discount rate (p.a) 6.85% 7.70% 
Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 10.00% 10.00% 

Demographic assumptions: 

Particulars Assumptions as at Assumptions as at 
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

Retirement age 60 years 60 years 
Mortality table 100%ofIALM 100% ofIALM 

(2012-14) (2006-08) 
Employee turnover Upto 30 years- 5% Upto 30 years- 5% 

31 - 40 years- 3% 31 - 40 years- 3% 
4 I - 50 years- 2% 41 - 50 years- 2% 

Above 50 years- 1 % Above 50 years- 1 % 
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Sensitivity Analysis: 

The key actuarial assumption to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to 
discount rate and future salary escalation rate. The following table summarizes the impact on the 
reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of an increase 
or decrease in the reported assumption by 50 basis points. 

As at As at 
Particulars 31 March 2020 31March2019 

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase 
Discount rate (-I+ 50 bps) 189.32 159.69 134.07 112.69 
Salary growth rate (- I + 50 bps) 160.01 188.55 113.09 133.43 

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the 
plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown. 

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in 
isolation and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the reporting date. 

Expected maturity analysis: 

The expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation is as follows: 

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019 
Less than 1 year 2.01 1.22 
1-2 years 3.70 2.01 
2-5 years 17.43 9.79 
More than 5 years 672.18 603.30 

The weighted average duration to the payment of defined benefit obligation is 18 years (31 March 2019 
18 years). 

Risk Analysis: 

The above defined benefit plan expose the Company the following risks: 

i) Interest rate risk 
The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If 
bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase. 

ii) Salary inflation risk 
Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation. 

iii) Demographic risk: 
This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include 
mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined 
benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, 
discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the 
financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year 
as compared to a long service employee. 

c) Compensated absences: 

The obligation of compensated absence in respect of the employees of the Company works out to Rs. 
62.76 lakhs as at 31March2020 (31March2019 Rs. 87.42 lakhs). 
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44. Segment Reporting 

In the opinion of the management, there is only one reportable segment i.e. power operations, as envisaged 
by the Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments. Accordingly, no disclosure for segment reporting has been made 
in the financial statements. 

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax and post-employment benefit 
assets, broken down by location of assets, is shown below: 

Particulars As at As at 
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

India 323,671.03 342,888.03 

The Company derives its 100% revenue from the customers located in India and constitute a single 
reportable segment for the purpose of geographical segment reporting. 

Information about major customers 
Revenue from transactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 per cent or more of the entity's 
revenue is given as below: 

Business segments For the year ended For the year ended 
31March2020 31 March 2019 

Thermal power (Customer 1) 62,760.09 106,009.67 
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45. Related party disclosures 

a) Name of related party and nature of related party relationships: 

i) Related parties where control exists: 

Ultimate holding company 
ACB (India) Limited 

Holding company 
ACB (India) Power Limited 

ii) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year: 

Enterprises under common control of ultimate holding company 
Aryan Clean Coal and Technologies Private Limited 

Associate of ultimate holding company 
Swastik Power and Mineral Resources Private Limited 

Key Management Personnel (KMP): 
Promila Bhardwaj, Director 
Charan Das Arha, Director 
Sakshi Vaid, Company Secretary (upto 10 December 2018) 
Eti Vashist, Company Secretary (w.e.f. 05 March 2019) 

Enterprises where key management personnel or their relatives are interested (others) 
Sainik Finance & Industries Limited 

Sainik Mining And Allied Services Limited 
Sindhu Trade Links Limited 
V V Transport 
MS & Sons 
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b) Transactions/outstanding balances with related parties: 

Nature of Transactions 
Ultimate 

holding company 

-Sha1e application money 1eceived 
--- -Share application money refund 

--
545.00 

Inter corporate deposit received 
(28,15~ 

-Inter corporate deposit refund 
(2.975 00) 

Purchase of property, plant and -
___:_guipment and capital work in p1 ogress . 

-
-

Beneficalion charges ---
(450.19) --

1.238.73 
Coal purchase --

(9,885.77) 
--

--3.366 ll 
Interest expense 

(898.20) 
0 35 

Pm chase of spares 
(1.03) 

Re-handling of coal -
Repair & maintenance office -------

1~ -Sale of coal 
(76,30) 

---
193.97 

Transportation and loading charges 
(1,269.60) 

-Vehicle running & maintenance ---
Purchase of fuel 

- ---- --
Salaries, wages and bonus 

Repair & maintenance Plant and ---
1-

Machinery -
Commercial Vehicle hire charges -

---Director meeting fee --
-Repair & maintenance building . 

Fig11res in brackets() are/or the year ended 31March2019. 

c) Out11tn11dint? btdunreJ; : 
Nature of Balance 

Ultimate holding 
company 

Creditors for capital goods 

-
Dues to employees -- -

27.129,94 
lnler corporale deposit taken 

(25,776 56) 
3,029.50 

Interest accured but not due 
(808.38) . 

Retention for capital goods -,_ -
Trade payable 

9,354.06 
r-(9,378.57) 

Fig11res in brackets ()are as on 31 March 2019. 

Enterprise 
Holding 

under common 
Company 

control 

- -
(105 00) -

- -----
(105 00) --- --- --- --
(195.00) 

- -
(195.00) -

- --- - -- . 
. --- - ----
-
- -

259.19 . 
(228.49) -

- 1.81 

- (2.93) 
. -
- --- - -- -- --- ---- ------- -
-
. . - -- -. 

- -
- -
- -. 
-

-
- -. -
- -
- -- ------ -
- -
. . 

Holding Enterprise under 
company common control 

- ----- (II 89) - _,_ 
- -- . . 

J.727.93 
( 1.522.28) -

233.27 -- -
(205.64) ----. 

---
7600 13.71 -

(116.00) -

Associate of Key 
Grand 

ultimate holding Management Others 
Total 

company Persons 

- - - -
- -- (105 00) 

- --- - (I05 00) ----- 545.00 - -- --- - - (28.346 56) 

- - ---- (1.400.00) (4.570.00) 

- - 16.31 16 31 - -. . (549.00) (549.00) 
154.50 - 154 50 -

(399 13) - - (849 32) --- - - -- - 1.238.73_ 

- - - (9.885.77) 

- - 1,027.53 4.652.83 

- (978.63) (2.105.32) -- -

- - - 2 16 

- - ~~ -- - - -
- - (587.79) (587.79) 

- . . --- ---- - (47 80) - (47 80) 

- - - ---- - - (76.30) -- - 2.508 31 2.702.28 
. . (10,623.68) (11.893 28) ------ . - ------ -
- - ~ (I 16) 

- - - ---- - (75.81) (75 81) 

- . - -
- (5.09) ---

. (5.09) 

- - ----
(6.67) (6:67) - -

- 481.62 481 62 
(47.50) - ~7.50) 

- 260 - 260 - - (2To) - (2.70) -
- 8 02 8:02 -- (5.24) (5.24) 

Associate or Key 
ultimate holding Management Others Grand Total 

company Persons 

- 1,091.59 1,091.59 

- - (1,040.10) (1~ 
- - -
- (0.41) - J 0.41 ) 
. - 6.850.17 35.708.04 

- - (5.969.41) (33.268 25) - -
924.77 ~187.54 . ---- - (880.77) (1~94.7~ - ---- -- - 34.04 34.04 --- - - (48.35) (48.35) 

- - 6,477.32 15,921.09 

(392.37 - (5,519.89) (15.406.83 
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d) Disclosure in respect of transaction which are more than 10% of the total transactions: 

Particulars For the year ended 
31March2020 --Beoefication charges 

- ---
ACB (India) Limited --Swastik Power and Mineral Resources Private Limited 154.50 -

154.50 -- ---Coal purchase 
ACB (India) Limited 1,238.73 -

1,238.73 
Interest expense -
ACB (India) Limited 3,366.11 
ACB (India) Power Limited 259.19 
Sainik Finance & Industries Limited 1,027.53 .. 4,652.83 
Purchase of spares 
ACB (India) Limited 0.35 
Aryan Clean Coal Technologies Private Limited 1.81 

2.16 
Re-handling of coal -
Sindhu Trade Links Limited -

-
Repair & maintenance office 
Sindhu Trade Links Limited -

-
Sale of coal 
ACB (India) Limited -

-
Transportation and loading charges 
ACB (India) Limited 193.97 
Sindhu Trade Links Limited 2,354.37 
V V Transport 4.52 --MS&Sons 149.42 

2,702.28 
Vehicle running & maintenance 
V V Transport -

-
Share application money received 
ACB (India) Power Limited -

-
Share application money refund 
ACB (India) Power Limited -

-
Inter corporate deposit received 
ACB (India) Limited 545.00 
ACB (India) Power Limited -

545.00 

For the year ended 
31 March 21!!2.__ 

---
450.19 
399.13 
849.32 

9,885.77 
9,885.77 

-
898.20 
228.49 --
978.63 

2,105.32 

1.03 
2.93 
3.96 

-
587.79 
587.79 

47.80 
47.80 

76.30 
76.30 

1,269.60 
9,384.35 

9.52 
1,229.80 

11,893.27 

1.16 
1.16 

105.00 
105.00 

105.00 
105.00 

28,151.56 
195.00 

28,346.56 
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d) Disclosure in respect of transaction which are more than 10% of the total transactions: 

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2020 

Inter corporate deposit refund 
ACB (India) Limited -
ACB (India) Power Limited -
Sainik Finance & Industries Limited -

-
Purchase offuel 
Sindhu Trade Links Lit)lited -
V V Transport -

-
Purchase of property, plant and' equipment and capital work 
in progress 

Sindhu Trade !-inks Limited 16.31 
16.31 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
Sakshi Vaid 

. -
Eti Vashist -

-
Repair & maintenance-plant and machinery -
Sainik Mining And Allied Services Limited -

-
Commercial Vehicle hire charges 
Sainik Mining And Allied Services Limited 47.50 
Sindhu Trade Links Limited 434.12 

481.62 
Director meeting fee 

Charan Das Arha 1.42 
Promila Bhardwaj 1.18 

2.60 
Repair & maintenance-building 
Sindhu Trade Links Limited 8.02 

8.02 

For the year ended 
31 March 2019 

---
2,975.00 

195.00 
1,400.00 
4,570.00 

18.23 
57.58 
75.81 

549.00 - -
549.00 

--
4.65 
0.44 
5.09 
-

6.67 
6.67 

47.50 

-
47.50 

1.44 
1.26 
2.70 

524 
5.24 
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46. Income tax expense 

(i) Income tax recognised in profit or loss 

Pnr1 icul:irs 

Deferred tax credit 

Total income tax expense 

(ii) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 

For the year ended 
31 March 2020 

(1,123.85) 

(1 ,123.85) 

For- the year ended 
3) March 2019 

(3,920.76) 

(3 .!>20. 76) 

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2020 For the year ended 31 March 2019 

Before tax Tax expense/ Net or tax Before tax 
(benefit) 

Net actuarial gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans (4.49) (1 57) (2.92) 2.75 

(4.49) (1.57) (2.92) 2.75 

(iii) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate: 

Current year tax net of MAT credit entitlement 

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2020 

Profit before tax 

Tax at the Indian tax rate 

Tax effect of: 

Non-deductible expenses 

Employee benefit 

Depreciation/amortisation 

Others 

Provision for current tax at the effective income tax rate 

Deferred tax cr<dit 

Tax Rate 

34.944% 

Amount 

(31 ,884.03) 

(11,141.55) 

110.94 

(26.44) 

(3,259.05) 

14,316.10 

0.00 

Particulars For the yen r ended 31 March 2020 

(i) Increase/ (decrease) in deferred tax liability at tax rate of 34.944% (previous year 34.944'\lo) 
Property, plant & equipment and capital work in progress 

Changes in estimates 

(ii) Increase/ (decrease) in deferred tax asset at tax rate of 34.944% (previous year 34.944%) 

Carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation 

Provisions and others 

Deferred tax charge/( credit) (i-ii) 

47. Lease 
Company as lessee:-

Amount 

3,258.34 

504.43 

3,762.77 

4,479.80 

406.82 

4,886.62 

(1,123.85) 

Tax expense/ Net of tax 
(benefit) 

0.95 1.80 
0.95 1.80 

For the year ended 31 March 2019 

Tax Rate Amount 

(11,991.78) 

34.944% (4,190.41) 

955.94 

54.19 

(5,029.85) 

8,210.1 1 

For the ycu r ended 31 March 2019 

Amount 

5,028.35 

5,028.35 

8,210.12 

738.99 

8,949.11 

(3,920.76) 

The Company has adopted the lndAS I 16 from I April 2019 which supersedes the JndAS 17. The effect of adopting the lndAS 116 on Company's financials are as follows:-

(i) Carrying amount ofRoU assets recognised and the movement during the year are as under:-

Particulars 

Land 

As at I April 2019 

Reclassification to RoU assets 

Addition during the year 

Depreciation 

As at 31 March 2020 

(ii) Amount recognised in profit & loss during the year are as under:-

Particulars 

Depreciation 

Total 

(iii) 

Amount 

774.81 

32.10 

(33.25) 

773.66 

Amount 

33 25 

33.25 
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48. Fair Value Measurements 

(a) Financial instruments bv rntcgo.-v . 
As at 31 March 2020 

Particulan Carrying value 

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost 

Financial assets 

Non-current 

Loans - . 31.63 

Other financial assets 1,909.77 - 1,002.91 

Current 

Trade receivables - - 50,517,06 

Cash and cash equivalents - - 105.23 

Other bank balances . . 855.68 

Loans . . . 
Other financial assets 118.16 . 29,770.77 

TOTAL 2,027.93 - 82,283.28 

Financial liabilities 

Non-current 

Borrowings . - 273,832.40 

Other financial liabilities - 28,968.09 

Current 

Borrowings - . 58,757.40 

Trade payables - - 35,284.07 

Other financial liabilities - - 36,523.24 

TOTAL - . 433,365.20 

(b) Fair value hierarchy 

As at 31March2019 

C:n rrying vnluc 

FVTPL FVOCI Arnortised Cost 

. . 34.58 
981.47 - (0.00) 

- - 62,489 94 

- - 188.13 

- . 3,609.14 
. . -

13.97 . 14,790.97 
995.44 - 81,112.76 

- . 280,813.66 

- - 29,999.66 

. - 53,832.56 

- - 32,596 49 

- - 20,807 61 

- . 418,049.98 

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in dctennining the fair values of the finnncwl instruments that are measured rn umor1ised 
cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication aboul the reliabil ity of the inputs used in detunnining 
fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each 
level follows underneath the table. 

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed 

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019 
Particulars 

Level 1 Level 2 Leve13 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Financial assets 

Security deposits - . 31.63 - . 34.58 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings - - 273,832.40 - - 280,813.66 

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a valuation team that has overall 
responsibility for overseeing all significant fa ir value measurements nnd reports directly to the Chief finance ofticer . The valuation team regularly 
reviews significant u1mbservablc inputs lind valuation udjListmcnts. Jr th ird. party info nnation, such as broker quotes or pricing services. is used lo 
measure fair values then the villuution team assesses the evidence obta ined from lhc third parties to support the conclusion tluu these valuations meet 
the requirements oflnd AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified. Significant valuation issues are 
reported to the Company's audit committee. 
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(b) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost: 

As at 31 March 2020 
Particulars 

Carrying value Fair value 

Financial assets 

Non-current 

Loans 31.63 31.63 

Other financial assets 1,002.91 1,002 91 

Current 

Trade receivables 50,517.06 50,517.06 

Cash and cash equivalents 105.23 105.23 

Other bank balances 855.68 855.68 

Other financial assets 29,770.77 29,770.77 

TOTAL 82,283.28 82,283.28 

Financial liabilities 

Non-current 

Borrowings 273,832.40 273,832.40 

Other financial liabilities 28,968.09 28,968.09 

Current 

Borrowings 58,757.40 58,757.40 

Trade payables 35,284.07 35,284.07 

Other financial liabilities 36,523.24 36,523.24 

TOTAL 433,365.20 433,365.20 

As at 31 Marcli 2019 

Carrying value Fair value 

34.58 34.58 
(0.00) (0.00) 

62,489.94 62,489.94 
188.13 188.13 

3,609.14 3,609.14 
14,790.97 14,790.97 
81,112.76 81,112.76 

280,813.66 280,813.66 

29,999.66 29,999.66 

53,832.56 53,832.56 

32,596.49 32,596.49 

20,807.61 20,807.61 

418,049.98 418,049.98 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash, deposits with banks, interest 
accrued but not due, other current financial assets and current financial liabilities, approximates the fair values, due to their short-term nature. 

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values. 
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49. Financial Risk Management 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings in foreign as well as domestic currency, trade payables and 
other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial 
assets include loans, trade & other receivables, cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations. The Company also 
enters into derivative contracts such as forward contracts and swaps. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as 
trading or speculative instruments. 

The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 
- Credit risk 
- Liquidity risk 
- Market risk 

This note explains the sources ofrisk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk. 

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement 
Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, derivative Ageing analysis 

financial instruments, financial assets measured at Credit ratings 
amortised cost. 

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Cash flow forecasting 
Sensitivity analysis 

Market risk - foreign - Future commercial transactions, Cash flow forecasting 
currency risk - Recognised financial liabilities not denominated in Sensitivity analysis 

Indian rupee (INR) 

Market risk - interest rate Long-term borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis 
risk 

Risk management framework 

Management 

Diversification of bank 
deposits, credit limits 
and letters of credit 

Availability of 
borrowing facilities 

Cross currency swaps, 
diversification and 
regular evaluation of 
borrowings 

The Company's activities makes it susceptible to various risks. The Company has taken adequate measures to address such concerns by 
developing adequate systems and practices. The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of 
markets and seeks to manage the impact of these risks on the Company's financial performance. 

The Board of Directors and audit committee have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk 
management framework. The Committee has identified enterprise wide risk and various action plans for short term as well as long term 
which have been formulated to mitigate these risks. The Committee is also responsible for reviewing and updating the risk profile, 
monitoring the effectiveness of the risk management framework and reviewing at least annually the implementation of the risk 
management policy and framework. The Committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities. 

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk 
limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and 
obligations. 

The Company has policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, commodity price risk, credit risk, 
liquidity risk, and the use of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is 
reviewed on a continuous basis. 
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Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued) 

1. Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Company. 

Trade receivables 
Customer credit risk is managed according to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit 
risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are 
defined in accordance with this assessment. 

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of 
minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. 
Since the Company has its customers within different states of India, geographically there is no concentration of credit risk. 
However, management considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the 
industry. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 105.23 at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019 Rs. 188.13). The cash and cash 
equivalents are held with bank and financial institution with high rating. 

Deposits with banks 11nd fin:111cial inst it utions 
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance 
with the Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits 
assigned to each counterparty. 

(i) Exposure to credit risk 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at 
the reporting date was: 

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured 
using 12 months Expected Credit Losses (ECL) 

Cash & cash equivalents 

Other bank balances 

Other financial assets 

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured 
using Life time Expected Credit Losses (ECL) 

Trade and other receivable 

(ii) Provision for expected credit losses 

As at 
31 March 2020 

105.23 

855.68 

29,888.93 

30,849.84 

50,517.06 

50,517.06 

(a) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses 

As at 
31 March 2019 

188.13 

3,609.14 

14,804.94 

18,602.21 

62,489.94 

62,489.94 

The Company has assets where the counter-parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default is 
very low. Accordingly, loss allowance for impairment has not been recognised. 
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(iii) Ageing analysis of trade receivables (refer note 9) 

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables is as below: 

Particulars 

Not due 

0-30 days past due 

31-60 days past due 

61-90 days past due 

91-180 days 

More than 180 days past due 

Total 

(iv) Reconciliation of impairment loss provisions 

There is no impairment loss provisions recognised during the year. 

2. Liquidity risk 

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019 

41 ,657.00 23,045.87 

486.82 10,740.19 

6,182.02 15,974.95 

336.28 12,696.10 

31.11 0.57 

1,823.83 32.26 

50,517.06 62,489.94 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, 
as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company' s reputation. 

The Company believes that its liquidity position, including anticipated future internally generated funds from operations, will 
enable it to meet its future known obligations in the ordinary course of business. The Company manages liquidity risk by 
maintaining adequate cash reserves and banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching 
the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Further, liquidity requirements are maintained within the credit facilities 
established and are adequate and available to the Company to meet its obligations. 
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Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued) 

(a) Financing arrangements 
The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period: 

Particulars 

Floating-rate borrowings 

Cash credit 

Term loans 

Foreign currency loans (in USD lakhs) 

The foll owir!g are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, based on contractual cash flows : 

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as on 31 Not later than one Later than one 
March 2020 year year and not later 

than five years 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 
Term loans from banks 17,366.76 72,324.18 

0.01 % Redeemable preference shares - 3,300.22 

Cash credit from bank 11,585.41 

Working capital demand loan 9,300.00 -
Inter-corporate deposit 37,871.99 -
Trade and other payables 35,284.07 -
Interest accrued and due 8,699.31 -
Interest accrued but not due 8,546.43 -
Retention money 422.40 20,269.72 

Recovery on account of encashment of contract bank guarantee~ - 8,698.37 

Creditors for capital purchase 1,336.46 -
Dues to employees 151.88 -
Total 130,564.71 104,592.49 

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as on 31 Not later than one Later than one 
March 2019 year year and not later 

than five years 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 

Term loans from banks 15,318.10 67,185.27 

0.01 % Redeemable preference shares - 2,389.31 

Unsecured loan from others - 20,566.00 

Cash credit from bank 17,764.31 -
Working capital demand loan 2,800.00 -
Inter-corporate deposit 33,268.25 -
Interest accrued but not due 2,345.03 -
Retention money 365.96 21,301.29 

Recovery on account of encashment of contract bank guarantee~ - 8,698.37 

Trade and other payables 32,596.49 -
Creditors for capital purchase 2,590.99 -
Dues to employees 187.53 -

Total ./oO_sl:._~~ <', • 107,236.66 120,140.24 

~~ ''+~ ~§ ~ ~:J < (:. 
'S oc: I w New Delhi ~ I 
·o,,., t>' ~ ii ~;;:;/ AcC~ < C> -

As at As at 
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

- 2,941.94 
- 22,008.00 
- 134.00 

Later than five Total 
years 

198,956.96 288,647.90 

694.57 3,994.79 

11,585.41 

- 9,300.00 

- 37,871.99 

- 35,284.07 

- 8,699.31 

- 8,546.43 

- 20,692.12 

- 8,698.37 

- 1,336.46 

- 151.88 

199,651.53 434,808.73 

Later than five Total 
years 

191,005.89 273,509.26 

1,343.47 3,732.78 

- 20,566.00 

- 17,764.31 

- 2,800.00 

- 33,268.25 

- 2,345.03 

- 21,667.25 

- 8,698.37 

- 32,596.49 

- 2,590.99 

- 187.53 

192,349.36 419,726.26 

-ol • 
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Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued) 

3. Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of 
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the 
return. 

The Board of directors is responsible for setting up of policies and procedures to manage market risks of the Company. The Company has entered into cross currency 
principal interest swap to hedge the interest rate and foreign exchange risk. 

(a) Currency risk 
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on certain transactions that are denominated in a currency other than entity's functional currency, hence exposure to 
exchange rate fluctuations arises. The risk is that the functional currency value of cash flows will vary as a 1esult ofmovcmcnts in exchange rates. 

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 are as below: 
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 

Non Derivative financial liabilities 
Retention money 

Sensitivity analysis 

INR USD (in lukhs) 

13,930.67 185.78 

13,930.67 185.78 

As at 31 March 2019 
INR USD (in la l h ) 

12,850.48 185.78 
12,850.48 185.78 

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against below currencies as at 31March2020 (previous year ending as at 31March2019) 
would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in respective currencies and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown 
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases. 

Effect in INR Closing rate Closing rate Profit/ (loss), net of tax Profit/ (loss), net of tax 
as at 31 as at 31 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

March 2020 March 2019 Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening 

2% movement 

USO 75.39 69.17 182.22 (182.22) 334.40 (334.40) 

182.22 (182.22) 334.40 (334.40) 

Out~tn ncling derivative contracts 
Category of derivative instrument Purpose of the derivative instrument Outstanding Principal Outstanding Principal 

(in USD lakhs) (in USD lakhs) 

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019 

Cross currency swap To hedge foreign currency exposure on 389.47 392.15 
repayment of foreign currency loan and part 
interest on foreign currency loan For 1 contract 
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(b) Interest rate risk 

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk arising mainly from long term borrowings with floating interest rates. The 
Company is exposed to interest rate risk because the cash flows associated with floating rate borrowings will fluctuate 
with changes in interest rates. 

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows: 

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 M:arch 2019 

Financial Assets 

Fixed-rate instruments 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,858.59 3,609.14 
Other financials assets 1,002.91 -

2,861.50 3,609.14 

Financial Liabilities 

Fixed-rate instruments 

Unsecured loan - 20,566.00 

Inter-corporate deposits 37,871.99 33,268.25 

0.01% Non Cumulative Redeemable preference shares of Rs.IO each 3,994.79 3,732.78 

41,866.78 57,567.03 

Variable-rate instruments 

Secured term loan from bank 288,647.90 273,509.26 

Working capital demand Joan 9,300.00 2,800.00 

Cash credits from banks 11,585.41 17,764.31 

309,S33.31 294,073.S7 

Total 3Sl,400.09 351,640.60 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments 

The Company's fixed rate instruments are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, 
since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates. 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments 

A change of 50 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or 
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, 
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the previous year. 

Particulars 

For the year ended 31 March 2020 

Secured term loan from bank 

Working capital demand loan 

Cash credits from banks 

For the year ended 31 March 2019 

Secured term loan from bank 

Working capital demand loan 

Profit/ (loss), net of tax 
SO bp increase SO bp decrease 

®-

(938.91) 

(30.25) 

(37.69) 

(l,006.8S) 

(889.67) 

(9.11) 

(57.78) 

(956.S6) 

~ 

938.91 

30.25 

37.69 

1,006.8S 

889.67 

9.11 

57.78 

956.56 

JtrL--· 
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50. Capital Management 

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to: 

- safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for 
other stakeholders and 

- maintain an appropriate capital structure of debt and equity 

The Board of Directors has the primary responsibility to maintain a slrong capital base and reduce the cost of capital through 
prudent management of deployed funds and leveraging opportunities in domestic and international financial markets so as to 
maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business The Board of Directors 
monitors the return on capital, which the Company defines as result from operating activities divided by total shareholders' 
equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to equity shareholders 

In order to achieve the overall objective, the company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets 
financial covenants attached to the interest bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements , Breaches rn 
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings There have been no breaches 
in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowings in the current period. 

The Company monitors capital, using a medium term view of three to five years, on the basis of a number of financial ratios 
generally used by industry and by the rating agencies 

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt comprises oflong term and 
short term borrowings less cash and cash equivalent. Equity includes equity share capital and reserves that are managed as 
capital The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting periods was as follows: 

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019 

Net debts 349,851.33 349,776.19 

Total equity 18,269.45 49,032 55 

Nel debt to equity ratio 19.15 7.13 

51. There is no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the company owes dues which are outstanding for more than 45 
days during the year. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development 
Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the 
company. 

52. Standards issued but not yet effective 

Ministry of corporate affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards There is no such 
notifications which shall have been applicable from 0 I April 2020. 

53. The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable. 

54. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 
30 December 2020. 
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